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PAIR INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED
CHAIRMAN'’s REVIEW FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2019

| am pleased to present the Financial Statements of PAIR Investment Company Limited (“the
Company”) for the year ended December 31, 2019. It continues to be testing times for the
Company in terms of external and internal happenings. The government after taking charge of the
office took some tough decisions that impacted the business and consumer confidence however as
the dust settled the results of those measures are becoming eminent accordingly the concerns on
the economic stability are getting addressed to a greater extent if not fully. State Bank of Pakistan
(“SBP”) has changed its instance on the target policy rate from aggressive to hold since then the
rate remains unchanged from the last three consecutive reviews by the Monetary Policy
Committee. Even though inflation is persistently high, the reduction in the Current Account Deficit
bodes well for the country as can be seen from the SBP foreign exchange reserves.

Pakistan Stock Exchange (“PSX”) has been taking big swings from negative to positive and from
positive to negative till the sharp recovery was seen in the latter part of the year. From the stock
market perspective, investors have responded positively to Pakistan’s entry in the IMF program
along with the improvement in the perception for the creditworthiness of Pakistan as well as the
improved law and order situation throughout the country. PKR after sharp episodes of devaluation
is now considered to be at its equilibrium position in the international market. Thus the market has
regained its appeal for foreign investors. In addition to foregoing the market, it-self is trading at
attractive valuations compared to other emerging markets. The challenging economic situation is
already accounted for in these valuations.

The Company continues to show resilience in the case of internal and external factors. There is a
significant turnaround in terms of the profitability this year as the profit before tax stood at PKR
394.467 million while there was a mere breakeven last year. Non- performing loans continued to be
bad news however the management of the company continues to prudently monitor the same.
Coverage ratios are improved by way of making provisions in line with the guidance of the
Prudential Regulations. Further efforts of recovering are being made and positive out of court
settlements are expected to be reached with some of the defaulters. After careful analysis of the
causes and effects, the due diligence mechanism has been further strengthened and stricter
monitoring controls are implemented to ensure the corrective actions are taken before an account
goes bad. There were some additional provisions that were taken on account of the equity
investments as the PSX remained under the negative influence during the year, however towards
the end of the year with the things got better and considerable portion of these provisions made
including the charge taken in prior periods got reversed as the respective investments were
offloaded in the market. Asset and Liability Committee oversees the asset profile and aligns the
asset booking and fund generation after taking into account the prevalent economic constraints
and capture the opportunities at the same time. Efforts are being made to diversify the revenue
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sources and increase the customer base. As such there were many new names added and
added to the portfolio.

| assure you that the Company is fundamentally strong and have the full support of its shareholder
and will continue to contribute towards the economic growth of the country. We at the board level
are fully aware of the challenges currently being faced by the Company including the placement of
the MD/CEO and are working for the resolution of the same. We have full confidence in the
management team who comprise of seasoned professionals of their respective fields.

| would like to offer my sincere appreciation to all the stakeholders who continue to support the
Company including Iran Foreign Investments Company, Ministry of Finance- Government of
Pakistan, State Bank of Pakistan and Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan for their
guidance and cooperation extended to our company. | would also encourage the staff and
colleagues for their commitment, their team spirit as they hold hands of each other in the turbulent
time of the Company and their contribution to the progress of the business.

——rI
_%«A/‘
Zahoor Ahmed

Acting Chairman of the Board of Directors
Tehran: February 18, 2020
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PAIR INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present the Financial Statements of PAIR Investment
Company Limited (PAIR) for the year ended December 31, 2019. These Financial Statements have been
prepared in compliance with the requirements of BPRD Circular No. 02 dated January 25, 2018, and BPRD
Circular No. 10 dated November 27, 2018.

Economic Overview

To stabilize the economy painful yet necessary policy measures were undertaken by the PTI government
with the support of the IMF. Some of these measures were highly criticized for political gains however some
of the decisions have started to bear fruits and the economy seems to be moving in the right direction.
According to the State Bank of Pakistan’s (“SBP”) first-quarter report for fiscal year, 2020 describes the GDP
growth target of percent to be unlikely to be achieved while the World Bank projects the GDP growth rate
for 2020 for Pakistan to be 3.7% to 2.7% since the production of important crops is falling short of target the
targets while the large-scale manufacturing sector is witnessing decline as construction-allied industries,
petroleum and automobile industries continued on downward path.

Inflation remained on the high side primarily from food price increase along with the increase in utility
prices. The latter being the function of the increase in oil prices and the withdrawal of the subsidies. In the
last monetary policy statement of SBP issued on January 28, 2020, SBP’s projection for average inflation
remained broadly unchanged at 11 — 12 percent for FY20 while the monetary policy itself will continue to
take measures to bring inflation down to the medium-term target range of 5 — 7 percent over the next six to
eight quarters.

The Current Account Deficit (“CAD”) contracted by 75 percent to USS$ 2.15 billion during Jul — Dec 2019 due
to a notable reduction in imports and modest growth in both exports and workers’ remittances. Importantly,
export volumes of major items including rice, value-added textiles, leather products, and fish and meat,
exhibited a notable increase. This reflects the benefits of a more competitive exchange rate and take-up of
incentive credit schemes for export-oriented sectors. The capital account also continued to strengthen, with
continued inflows of foreign portfolio investment and foreign direct investment. SBP foreign exchange
reserves despite making repayment of USS 1.0 billion international Sukuk in early December 2019 increased
from USS 7.28 billion at end-June 2019 to USS 11.73 billion as of 17th January 2020, an increase of USS 4.45
billion.

With PKR reaching its equilibrium position in international markets, the attractive interest rate on the
sovereign local currency bonds and improved perception of the international investors about Pakistan’s
creditworthiness healthy portfolio inflows of more than USD 2.8 billion are witnessed. Such inflows reduce
the interest rate on government debt due to the greater demand for government securities, deepen capital
markets, and free up domestic banks’ resources for lending to the private sector.

The equity market remained under pressure amid heightened volatility throughout the year. During the first
eight months of FY 2019, the market mostly traded in negative territory bottoming at 28,765 points in mid-
August (down by 22% in CY19), but subsequently, it made a spectacular recovery to not only regain its earlier
losses of the year but also post a net positive return of 10% for CY19 as the KSE-100 Index settled at 40,735
points. From the valuations perspective, despite a robust recovery from its lows the market is trading at an
attractive Price-to-Earnings multiples and offers an attractive dividend yield too. The corporate listings that
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were put on hold owing to the negative market conditions are expected to finally make their way. There is
ample local liquidity ready to enter the market, awaiting clarity on the economic recovery. Therefore from
the equity market’s perspective, the momentum that came in Q4 of FY 2019 is expected to continue albeit in
a range-bound manner in FY 2020.

Financial Highlights

FY 2019 was no less tough then FY 2018 for the Company, both in terms of external economic factors as well
as issues, that were unique to the organization itself. Profit before tax position considerably improved in FY
2019 (PKR 394.467 million) when compared to the mere breakeven of FY 2018 (PKR 11.458 million). Gross
markup income earned during the year was PKR 1.967 billion as against the PKR 0.907 billion in FY 2018. The
other income needs a careful interpretation where dividend income has doubled whereas the loss on the
sale of securities is about PKR 102.270 million. Out of which PKR 101.802 million pertains to the realization
of loss on the sale of the securities that also resulted in a reversal of PKR 157.509 million of provision for
diminution on the same investments given a net positive effect of PKR 55.707 million on the profit and loss
account. The shift from bears to bulls in Q4 of FY 2019 presented the Company with the opportunity to
crystallize the losses it had already booked in prior periods and the portfolio managers methodically
materialized the end result.

Markup expense also grew as the better average total asset balances were observed throughout the year.
An increase in employee cost, property expenses and technology had their respective fair share in the
increase of administrative expenses which increased by 21% over the previous year.

US sanctions on Iran along with the availability of the cheaper funding sources will continue to pose
challenges to the profitability and operational continuity of the Company, yet we can say with fair amount of
certainty that financial position of the Company is expected to continue to improve in the coming days on
the back of healthy growth in loan book as well as improved capital markets. The recovery of the latter will
be a key factor in boosting the revenues of the Company.

The total assets increased by 16% or PKR 2.949 billion to close at PKR 21.475 billion as against PKR 18.525
billion of the total asset as at December 2018. Net investments closed at PKR 14.664 billion which is a
healthy increase of 30% from the previous year when it closed at PKR 11.259 billion. In view of interest rates
reaching its peak and expectations of rate cuts in the FY 2020 the focus is shifted back to fixed income
securities from floating rate investments consequently fixed income government securities i.e. Treasury Bills
and Pakistan Investment Bonds were invested in. Out of the total increase of PKR 3.404 billion, PKR 3.228
billion were in the aforementioned securities. A charge of PKR 47.217 million for diminution in the value of
the investment was taken to P&L during the year against the equity exposure that reduced the reversal of
provision for the diminution in the value of investment of PKR 157.509 million to PKR 110.292 million.

Healthy bookings in the last quarter of FY2018 supported earnings throughout the FY2019 while there was a
change in the head of Corporate and Investment Banking (“CIBG”) department, owner of the loan portfolio.
During the year the outgoing head of CIBG left the Company in June while his successor joined in October.
The incumbent is a seasoned professional and portfolio is expected to expand both in terms of the new
name as well as deepening of the existing relationships.

Some additional classifications were made to the Non-Performing Loan (“NPL”) during the year. The
aggregate amount of the exposure that was additionally classified amounted to PKR 123.779 million.
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Additional provision booked against the NPL portfolio during the year amounted to PKR 287.445 million
while it was PKR 117.524 million last year. The additional provision improved the coverage ratio.

Credit Rating

Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) has reaffirmed entity rating long-Term Entity Rating
‘AA‘(Double A) and a short term Entity Rating of ‘Al+ (A-One Plus). These ratings indicate a very low
expectation of credit risk emanating a very strong capacity for timely payment of financial commitments.
The ratings of PAIR primarily reflect the joint sovereign ownership of Pakistan and Iran.

Statement of Internal Controls

The Board is pleased to endorse the statement made by management relating to internal controls including
management’s evaluation of ICFR. The Management’s Statement on Internal Controls is included in the
Annual Report.

Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework

The Board of Directors of PAIR, for the purpose of establishing a framework of good corporate governance,
has implemented the relevant provisions of the Code of Corporate Governance for the year ended
December 31, 2019. Review report on the Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance
from the external auditors is annexed with this report. As required under the Code of Corporate
Governance, the Board of Directors states that:

The financial statements prepared by the management of PAIR present fairly its state of affairs, the
results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

. Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained.

. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of the financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

. International Accounting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in the preparation
of the financial statements and any departure therefrom has been adequately disclosed.

. As a continuous process, efforts have been made to effectively implement the internal control
system. An effective and sound system of internal control is in place in accordance with the
requirements of the regulatory authorities.

. There is no doubt regarding PAIR’s ability to continue as a going concern.
. There has been no material departure from the best practices of the Code of Corporate Governance.
. Key operating and financial data for the years 2010-2019 in a summarized form is included in the

annual report.
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. The tax outstanding amount and reason thereon are properly disclosed in the attached financial
statements.

Risk Management Framework

Taking cognizance of various types of business risks, an effective risk management framework is embedded
in PAIR's strategy and organization structure. An independent Credit and Risk Management Department
(“CRMD”) is working as a core function to strengthen Company-wide Risk Management activities by adopting
Basel II/1Il Framework. PAIR is fully compliant with the Capital Adequacy Requirements of the State Bank of
Pakistan under the Standardized Approach for Credit and Market Risk and Basic Indicator Approach for
Operational Risk.

The prevailing economic situation has led the company to set its focus towards the deployment of stringent
risk management policies to assess, mitigate and monitor major risks associated with business operations of
the company. Accordingly, your Company has established a set of activities and creates core functions to
administer, manage and report in order to complement its core business objectives and to remain abreast
with the latest developments & challenges to safeguard shareholders’ interests & enhance Shareholder’s
wealth.

Your Company has implemented a robust Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) to establish
more Risk Sensitive Assessment, Capital planning, formalization of Company-wide Risk Appetite, and to
remain abreast of the internal and external risks that may impact future operations of the company. The
deployment of this process allowed adequate management of capital as the Capital Adequacy Ratio stood at
58.04% against the regulatory requirement of 11.90% including Capital Conservation Buffer (CCB) of 2.5%.
This contributed to the development of risk appetite and concentration levels with respect to the transaction
level risk profiling as well as integrated portfolio management.

PAIR also periodically evaluates the organic strength of business by conducting Stress Testing of overall risk
exposure. It helps to ensure the smooth operations of the business under hypothetically stressed
circumstances. For this, CRMD applies shocks on different risk factors including interest rate, credit, equity
price, and liquidity. Results of the latest stress testing exercise depict the solid and resilient financial position
of your organization. The stress testing methodology implemented by PAIR is in adherence to SBP guidelines.

The Credit & Risk Management Department is also involved in the development of entity-wide policies,
procedures, systems, and reporting mechanisms to achieve and maintain entity-wide best rating status and
adaption of risk management principals in true letter and spirit. Further, the Board Risk Management
Committee and Board of Directors of your organization oversee the strategy related to risk management. In
addition, the Internal Audit department conducts independent, risk-based review and verification of major
functions throughout the year for evaluation of control systems supplemented by Internal Control and
Compliance Divisions.

Events after the Date of Statement of Financial Position

There have not been any material events that occurred subsequent to the date of the statement of
the financial position that requires adjustments to the enclosed financial statements, except those
which have already been made or disclosed.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company firmly believes in being a responsible corporate citizen and plays an integral role in our long-
term success, and strives to incorporate the approach into every aspect of its work culture. In addition to our
priority of operating profitability, the Company is aware of its responsibilities that go beyond its business,
particularly its commitment towards employees, society, and environment.

The Company will continue to encourage community growth and development, thereby contributing in
building a sustainable future in FY 2020 and beyond. Being a joint venture between the two brotherly
countries' inclusion of the charitable organizations from Iran will also be ensured, subject to the regulatory
approvals for the latter.

PAIR Investment, on an annual basis, sponsors one of its staff members to perform Hajj, through a
transparent balloting mechanism.

Board of Directors and their Meetings

Four (4) Board Meetings were held during the year 2019. The director(s) who were not able to attend any of
the meeting(s) were duly granted a leave of absence by the Board. The directors of the company attended
the meetings, as under:

Name of Director Representing Meetings Attended
Arif Ahmed Khan*- Chairman MOF-Pakistan 1
Hamid Eftekhari Kondelaji — CEO IFIC -Iran 4
Aamer Mahmood Hussain — Director MOF-Pakistan 4
Hemmat Jafari — Director IFIC -Iran 2
Zahoor Ahmed* —Director MOF-Pakistan 4
Gholamreza Khalil Arjmandi IFIC -Iran 4
Hamidreza Raufi **— Director IFIC -Iran 1

*Mr. Arif Ahmed Khan resigned from the board on 25 March 2019. Mr. Zahoor Ahmed is presiding
the meetings thereafter as the acting chairman of the board with the unanimous concession of the
board members.

**Mr. Hamidreza Raufi was appointed as a new Iranian Board Member in place of Mr. Hemmat Jafari
on 05 August 2019.

Board Committees and their Meetings

Four (4) meetings of Board Audit Committee (BAC), Four (4) meetings of Board Risk Management Committee
(BRMC) and (3) meetings of Board Human Resource Compensation Committee (BHRCC) and One (1) meeting
of Board Strategic Investment Committee (BSIC) were held during 2019.

The member(s) who were not able to attend any of the meeting(s) were duly granted a leave of absence by
the committee. The details of the meetings attended by each committee member are as under:

Name of Director Representing Designation and BAC BRMC BHRCC BSIC
name of the
committee
Arif Ahmed Khan MOF-Pakistan Member BHRCC 1
Hamid Eftekhari Kondelaji IFIC -Iran Member BRMC 4
Member BHRCC 3
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Member BSIC 1

Aamer Mahmood Hussain MOF-Pakistan Chairman BAC 4
Chairman BRMC 4
Member BHRCC 3

Zahoor Ahmed MOF-Pakistan Member BAC 2
Chairman BHRCC 3

Chairman BSIC 1

Hemmat Jafari IFIC -Iran Member BAC 2
Member BRMC 2

Member BHRCC 2

Gholamreza Khalil Arjmandi IFIC -Iran Member BAC 4
Member BSIC 1

Staff End of Service Benefits

The Bank operates two post-retirement funds, Provident Fund & Gratuity Fund. The carrying value of
investments and bank balance respective funds as at December 31, 2019, were:

Value of the Investments and Provident Fund Gratuity Fund

Bank Balances

2019 — unaudited 93,468 55,577
2018 — audited 75,578 44,913

Earnings / (Loss) Per Share

Basic and Diluted (loss) /earnings per share have been disclosed in note 33 of the financial statements.

Pattern of Shareholding

Shareholders Shareholding
Government of Pakistan through the Ministry of Finance 50%
Government of Iran through Iran Foreign Investment Company 50%
Total 100%

Appointment of Auditors

The present auditors M/s. KPMG Taseer Hadi & Company, Chartered Accountants, retired and being eligible
offer themselves for re-appointment in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. Therefore, on the
suggestion of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors recommends the shareholders to appoint M/s.
KPMG Taseer Hadi & Company Chartered Accountants as the statutory auditor of the company for the
financial year ending December 31, 2020.
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Future Outlook

In terms of the economic activity, we anticipate a positive outlook since the long term measures are being
taken rather than the short term quick fixes. Opportunities for earnings are available both in the debt and
equity market however the private sector offtake remains a concern for the loan booking. However, the
Government’s export-oriented strategy will require these sectors to have working capital demand.

PAIR investment sees a wide scope of business for itself in the year 2020 however it takes full cognizance of
the challenges in terms of the high cost of funds and mounting inventory of non-performing loans. Therefore
it will be focusing on raising low funds from non-conventional sources for a DFI and will be expanding its
customer base through its diversified product portfolio.

In terms of the internal challenges, it is imperative to resolve the issues surrounding the appointment of the
key management personnel i.e. MD/CEQ of the Company.

Appreciation and Acknowledgement

We would like to thank our customers and business partners for the trust they have placed in us. We offer
sincere appreciation to the Iran Foreign Investment Company, Ministry of Finance- Government of Pakistan,
State Bank of Pakistan and Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan for their guidance and cooperation
extended to our company. Finally, we are also thankful to our associates, staff, and colleagues for their
commitment and their contribution to the progress of our business.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

w
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Iran: February 18, 2020

7|Page DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019



re 3 | o =m

=

3

r— e, oo

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
(SEEartered Accountants
eikh Sultan Trust Building No. 2, Bea
Karachi 75530 Pakistan Aty
+92 (21) 35685847, Fax +92 (21) 35685095

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of PAIR Investment Company Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of PAIR Investment Company
Limited (the Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019, and the profit and loss account, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have
obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and

belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the statement of financial position, the profit and loss account, the
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and cash
flow statement together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner S0 required and
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31
December 2019 and of the profit, the comprehensive income, the changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (I1SAs)
as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Roard for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the
Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The Other Information
comprises the information included in the Company's Annual Report for the year ended

KPMG Taseer Ha ers
md?nﬁnd;re;ml:!":.rgﬁ Eo.._aﬁnr_{n:r.,h? firm registered in Pakistan and a member firm of the KPMG network of
it member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative ("KPMG International®), a Swiss entity.
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31 December 2019, but does not include the financia! statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan, the requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or 10 cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.
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ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise

As part of an audit in accordance with
skepticism throughout the audit. We

professional judgment and maintain professional
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

anagement’s use of the going concern basis
evidence obtained, whether a material
ditions that may cast significant doubt on
ng concern. If we conclude that a

d to draw attention in our auditor’s report
tements or, if such disclosures are

e Conclude on the appropriateness of m
of accounting and, based on the audit
uncertainty exists related to events or con
the Company’s ability to continue as a goi
material uncertainty exists, we are require
1o the related disclosures in the financial sta
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions aré based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide to the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied

with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a)

b)

c)

d)

proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017),

the statement of financial position, the profit and loss account, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the cash flow
statement together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with
the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of

account;

investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year

were for the purpose of the Company’s business; and

No zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII

of 1980).

Other Matter

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this indep

endent auditor's report is

Muhammad Taufig.

Date: 28 February 2020

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Karachi
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PAIR Investment Company Limited

Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2019

ASSETS

~ Cash andbalances with treasury banks

Balances with other banks
Lendingsto financial institutions
Investments

Advances

Fixed asssts

Intangible assets

Deferred tax asset

Other assets

LIABILITIES

Bills payable

Borrowings

Deposits and other accounts

Liabilities against assets subject to Finance Lease
Subordinated debt

Deferred tax liabilities

Other liabilities

NET ASSETS
REPRESENTED BY
Share capital
Reserves

Surplus / (Deficit) on revaluation of assets
Unappropriated profit

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Chief Finz_lncial Officer

L

Chief Executive and
Managing Director

Note

15
16

17

18
19
20

21

31 December

2019

31 December

2018

(Rupees in '000)

46,383 73,144
83,751 60,653
150,000 105,000
14,664,301 11,259,928
5,389,709 6,223,926
229,709 193,031
314 211
375,527 346,484
534,895 263,060
21,474,589 18,525,437
10,842,781 7,915,859
775,323 1,221,724
385,766 278,164
12,003,870 9,415,747
9,470,719 9,109,690
6,000,000 6,000,000
888,356 840,066
56,305 (71,701)
2,526,058 2,341,325
9,470,719 9,109,690

<~ <2/

Chairman

Director
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PAIR Investment Company Limited

Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Note 2019 2018
(Rupees in '000)
Mark-up / Return / Interest Earned 24 1,967,277 907,417
Mark-up / Return / Interest Expensed 25 1,024,210 472,607
Net Mark-up / Interest Income 943,067 434,810
NON MARK-UP / INTEREST INCOME
Fee and Commission Income 26 - 7,822 12,767
Dividend Income 57,509 29,295
Foreign Exchange Income 638 963
Income /(Loss) from derivatives - =
(Loss) / Gain on Securities 27 (102,270) 58,211
Other Income 28 89 -
Total non mark-up / interest income (36,212) 101,236
Total Income ' 906,855 536,046
NON MARK-UP / INTEREST EXPENSES
Operating expenses 29 322,425 267,421
Workers Welfare Fund 12,807 -
Other charges 30 3 4
Total non mark-up / interest expenses 335,235 267,425
Profit Before Provisions 571,620 268,621
Provisions and write offs - net 31 177,153 257,163
Extra ordinary / unusual items - -
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 394,467 11,458
Taxation 32 153,015 21,689
PROFIT / (LOSS) AFTER TAXATION 241,452 (10,231)
(Rupees)
Basic and Diluted Earnings / (Loss) per Share 33 0.40 (0.02)

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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PAIR Investment Company Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Profit / (Loss) after taxation for the year
Other comprehensive income

Items that may be reclassified to profit and loss account in

subsequent periods:

Movement in surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of investments - net of tax

Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss account in

subsequent periods:

Remeasurement gain / {loss) on defined benefit obligations - net of tax

Total comprehensive income / (loss)

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2019 2018
{Rupees in '000)

241,452 (10,231)
128,006 (34,415)
1,263 (996)

370,721 (45,642)

ACouxer. )::_,é/ i

Chief Executive and
'Managing Director

Chief Financial Officer

/.‘ e )
. W
rector DiYactor



y

o -y

p——

PAIR Investment Company Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Balance as at 01 January 2018

Loss after taxation for the year

ended 31 December 2018

Other comprehensive loss - net of tax

Transactions with owners recognised

directly in equity

Final cash dividend - 31 December 2017 declared

subsequent to the year end

Balance as at 31 December 2018 (As
reported previously)

Adiustment due to initial application of IFRS 16
Balance as at 31 December 2018 (Adjusted)
Profit for the year ended 31 December 2019

Other comprehensive income - net of tax

Transfer to statutory reserve

Balance as at 31 December 2019

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Chief Executive and

Managing Director

(f

Surplus / (deficit) on

Couser

Chief Financial Officer

Chairman

Share Capital  Statutory revaluation of Unappropriated
reserve Investments Fixed / Non profit Total
Banking
Assets
(Rupees in '000)
6,000,000 840,066 (37,286) 2,452,652 9,255,332
" & - 10,231) {10,231)
g = (34,415) (996) (35,411)
- - (100,000) (100,000)
6,000,000 840,066 (71,701) 2,341,325 9,109,690
{9,692) (9,692)
6,000,000 840,066 (71,701) 2,331,633 9,099,998
. z i 241,452 241,452
- - 128,006 1,263 129,269
- 48,290 - 148,290) -
6,000,000 888,356 56,305 2)526,058 9,470,718



-

[

PAIR Investment Company Limited

Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Note

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxation
Less: Dividend income

Adjustments:

Depreciation

Amortisation

Provision and write-offs 31
Gain on sale of fixed assets

Charge for defined benefit plan

Unrealised loss / (gain) on revaluation of held for trading investments

(Increase) / Decrease in operating assets
Lendings to financial institutions
Held-for-trading securities

Advances

Others assets (excluding advance taxation)

Increase / (Decrease) in operating liabilities
Borrowings from financial institutions
Deposits

Other liabilities (excluding current taxation)

Income tax paid
Defined benefits paid
Net cash flows from operating activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net investments in available-for-sale securities
Net investments in held-to-maturity securities
Dividends received

Investment in operating fixed assets

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets

Net cash flow used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid
Net cash flows from / (used in) financing activities

(Decrease) / Increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents at beginning of the year 34
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 34

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

e |

Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer Chairman
Managing Director

2018

2018

(Rupees in '000)

394,467 11,458
(57,509) (29,295)
336,958 (17,837)
26,368 11,201
246 194
177,153 257,163
(89) 4
10,316 9,392
468 8,010
214,462 285,964
551,420 268,127
(45,000) 865,000
40,152 91,039
546,772 (1,688,518
(253,386) 125,214
288,538 (607,265)
2,926,922 1,545,121
(4486,401) (592,277)
104,094 30,997
2,584,615 983,841
3,424,573 844,703
(229,203) (117,479)
(15,699) (7,331)
3,179,671 519,893
{2,796,338) (597,697)
(386,981) 153,060
58,023 30,310
(58,220) (1,418)
182 52
(3,183,334) (415,693)
- 11 (100,000)]
- (100,000)
(3,663) 4,200
133,797 129,597
130,134 133,797
or




2.
21
22
£
i
.
|
2.3
Y 2.4

PAIR Investment Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

PAIR Investment Company Limited (the Company] is an unlisted Public Limited Company incorporated in Pakistan on 15
January 2007 under the repeated Companies Ordinance, 1984. The Corpany has been notified as a Developrment Financizl
Institution {DFI) by the Ministry of Finance, Government of Pakistan.

The Company is a Joint Venture (50:50) between Government of Pakistan and lran Foreign Investrnent Company which is
owned by the Government of Iran. The Cornpany's objectives interahia includes financing for industrial and commercial projects,

capital end money market operations and other investment banking activities. Its registerad and principal office is situated at
ICC! Building, Clifton, Karachi.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the format of financial statements prescribed by the State

Bank of Pakistan (SBP) vide BPRD Circular No, 02 dated 25 January 2018 effective from the accounting year ending 31
December 2018.

These financial statements have been presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation
currency.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards comprise of;

- International Financial Reporting Standards {IFAS) issuved by the International Accounting Standards Board {|ASB) as are
notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017; and
- Directives issued by the State Bank of Pakistan and the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

Whenever the requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 or the directives issued by the SBP and the SECP differ with the
requirernents of the [FRS, the requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 and the said directives shall prevail.

- The SBP through its BSD Circuler letter No. 11 dated 11 September 2002 has deferred the implementation of 1AS 39
‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement' and IAS 40 ‘Investment Property’ for Non-Banking Financisl
Institutions (NBFls) in Pakistan. Further, SECP has deferred the implementation of IFRS 7 'Financiat Instrumnents:
Disclosures' through SRQ 411(1)/2008. Accordingly, the requirements of these IFRS and their respective interpretations
issued by International Financial Reparting Interpretations Committee {IFRIC) and Standing Interpretations Committee {(SIC),
have not been considered in preparation of thesa financial statements.

Standards, interpretations of and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in the
current year

IFRS 16, Leases and IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers, became effective for annual reporting periods

commenging on or after 1 January 2019. The impact of the adoption of these standards is disclosed in notes 4.1 and 4.2 to
these financial statements.

In addition to the above, there are certain new standards, amendments and interpretations that are mandatory for the
Company's accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2019 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any
significant effect on the Company's operations and are, therefore, net disclosed in these financial statements,

Standards, interpretations of and amendments to published approved accounting standards
that are not yet effective

The following IFRS as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be
effactive for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2019

- Amendment to IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ — Definition of & Business (effective for business combinations for which
the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020). The IASB has issued
amendments aiming to resolve the difficulties that arise when an entity determines whether it has acquired a business or a
group of assets. The amendments clarify that to be considered a business, an acquired set of activities and assets must
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include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs. The amendments include an election to use a concentration test, The standard is effective for transactions in the
future and therefore would not have an impact on past financial statements.

- Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020), The amendments are intended to
make the definition of material in IAS 1 easier to understand and are not intended to alter the underlying concept of
materiality in IFRS Standards. In addition, the IASB has also issued guidance on how to make materiality judgments when
preparing their general purpose financial statements in accordance with |FRS Standards.

- On 29 March 2018, the International Accounting Standards Board (the IASB) has issued a revised Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting which is applicable immediately contains changes that will set a new direction for IFRS in the future, The
Conceptual Framework primarily serves as a tool for the IASB to develop standards and to assist the IFRS Interpretations
Committee in interpreting them. It does not override the requirements of individual IFRSs and any inconsistencies with the
revised Framework will be subject to the usual due process — this means that the overall impact on standard setting may

. take some time to crystallise. The companies may use the Framework as a reference for seiecting their accounting policies
in the absence of specific IFRS requirements. In these cases, companies should review those policies and apply the new
guidance retrospectively as of 1 January 2020, unless the new guidance contains specific scope outs.

- IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts - (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2019) provides interim
guidance on accounting for regulatory deferral accounts balances while !ASB considers more comprehensive guidance on
accounting for the effects of rate regulation. In order to apply the interim standard, an entity has to be rate regulated — i.e.
the establishment of prices that can be charged to its customers for goods or services is subject to oversight and/or
approved by an authorized body. The term 'regulatory deferral account balance’ has been chosen s a neutral descriptor for
expense (income) or variance account that is included or is expected to be included by the rate regulator in establishing the
rate(s) that can be charged to customers and would not otherwise be recognized as an asset or liability under other |FRSs.
The standard is not likely to have any effect on Company's financial statements.

- IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments’ and amendment - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation - for DFls, the
effective date of the standard has been extended to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 vide SBP circular 4
dated 23 October 2019. IFRS 9 replaces the existing guidance in IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial instruments, a new
expected credit loss model for calculating impairment on financial assets, and new general hedge accounting requirements.
It also carries forward the guidance on recognition and derecognition of financial instruments from I1AS 39. According to SBP
circular referred to above, the DFI's is required to have a parallel run of IFRS 9 from 1 January 2020. The DFls are also

required to prepare pro-forma financial statements which includes the impact of IFRS 9 from the year ended 31 December
2019,

The above amendments are effective from annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020 and are not likely to have an
impact on Company's financial statements.

There are certain new and amended standards, interpretations and amendments that are mandatory for the Company's
accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2020 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant
effect on the Company's Operations and therefore not detailed in these financial staternents.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan requires management
to make judgments, estimates and associated assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The judgments, estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experiences, current trends and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future period if the revision affects both current and future periods. The estimates and judgments that have a significant
effect on the financial statements are in respect of the following:

Note
- Classification and valuation of investments and impairment 46 &8
- Provision against non-performing advances including net investment in finance lease ' 47 &9
- Provision against off - balance sheet obligations 4.24
- Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 49 & 13
- Useful life of fixed and intangible assets, depreciation and amortization 48,10 &1
- Current and deferred taxation 416,12 & 32
- Accounting for defined benefit plan and compensated absences 411,412 & 36
- Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities ‘ 41,10 &17
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4.1

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost corvention except for certain investments which have
been mark to market and are carried at fair value, non - banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims which are steted at
revalued amount less acoumulated depreciation and staff retirement benefits are earried at present value,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied and adopted in the preparation of these financial stetements are consistent with
those of the previous financial year, except for changes explzined in note 4.1:

During the year, IFRS 16 - Leases became applicable. [FRS 16 replaces existing guidance on accounting for leases, including

IAS 17, Leases, IFRIC 4, Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15, Operating Leases - Incentive, and SIC-
27, Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legel Form of a Lease. IFRS 16 introduces an on-balance sheet

lease accounting mode! for leases entered by the lessee. A lessee recognizes a right-of-use asset representing its right of using

the underlying asset and a corresponding lease liability representing its obligations to make lease payments. Lessor accounting

remains similar to the current standard i.e. lessors continue to classify leases as either finance or operating Jeases.

The Company has adopted {FRS 16 from January 01, 2019, and has not restated comparatives for the reparting period of 2018,
&s permitted under the specific transitional provisions in the standard.

On adoption of IFRS 16, the Company has recognised liabilities in respect of leases which had previously been classified as
operating leases under |AS 17. These liabilities were initially measured as the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate of 10.43% per annum as of January 01, 2019. The lease liability is
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate mathod.

As at As at
31 December 1 January
2019 2019

{Rupees in '000)

Lease Liability recognised 42,531 63,184

On adoption of IFRS 16, the associated right-of-use assets were measured at the amount equal to the tease [ability, adjusted

by the amount of prepaid lease payments recognised in the statement of financial position immediately before the date of initial
application.

The right-of-use assets recognised subsequent to the adoption are measured based on the initial amount of the lease tiability
adjusted for any lease psyments made at or before the cemmencement date. The right-of-use assets are deprecisted on a
straight line basis over the Isase term as this method most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of future

economic benefiis. The right-of-use assets ere reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements
of lease liability. )

As at As at
31 December 1 January

2019 2018
The recognised right-of-use assets relate to the following type of asset; (Rupses in '000)
Right-of-use assets Property 36,988 53,492
The efiect of this change in accounting policy is as follows:
Impact on Statement of Financial Positicn
Increase in fixed assets - right-of-use assets 36,988 53,492
Increase in deferred tax 1,607 -
Increase in total assets 38,595 53,492
tncrease in other liabilities - lease liability against right-of-use assets {42,831) (63,184}
Decrease in net assets (3.936) {9,692)
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For the year
ended 31
December
2019
Impact on Profit and Loss account (Rupees in '000)
Increase in mark-up expense - lease liability against right-of-use assets {6,311)
(Increase) / decrease in administrative expenses: “
- Depreciation on right-of-use assets (16,504)
- Rent expense 19,835
Decrease in profit before tax (1,980)
Decrease in tax 574
Decrease in profit after tax (1,406)

Change in accounting policy - IFRS 15- Revenue from contracts with customers

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognized. It
replaced IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and related interpretations.

The Company initially applied IFRS 15 on 1 January 2019 retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8 without any practical
expedients. The timing or amount of the Company's fee and commission income from contract with customers was not
impacted by the adoption of IFRS 15. These are disclosed in note 4.15.

Additional / amended disclosures effective from the accounting year ending 31 December 2019.

The State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) through its letter BPRD/R&PD/2018/17232 had relaxed the implementation and disclosure
requirements under the revised framework for Governance and Remuneration practices. The implementation of the risk
adjusted remuneration framework, as described in the guidelines across the converged business areas and MRTs / MRCs was
made effective from 01 January 2019, while the disclosures were made effective from 31 December 2019, Accordingly, the
information as required under the said framework and as required under the revised format of annual financial statements by

SBP through BPRD Circular No.02 of 2018 dated 25 January 2018, have been presented and disclosed in note 4.14, note 29.1
and note 41 to these financial statements.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the preparation of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash and balances with treasury banks and
balances with other banks excluding any term deposit with original terms of greater than three months.

Repurchase / resale agreements

The Company enters into repurchase / resale agreements at contracted rates for a specified period of time. These are recorded
as under:

Sale under repurchase obligations

Securities sold with a simultaneous commitment to repurchase at a specified future date (repo) continue to be recognised in
the statement of financial position and are measured in accordance with accounting policies for investments. Amounts received
under these agreements are recorded as repurchase agreement borrowings. The difference between sale and repurchase price
is amortised as expense over the term of the repurchase agreement.

Purchase under resale obligation

Securities purchased with a corresponding commitment to resell at a specified future date (reverse repo) are not recognised as
investments in the statement of financial position. Amounts paid under these arrangements are included in repurchase

agreement lendings. The difference between purchase and resale price is accrued as income over the term of the resale
agreement.

Investments

The Company classifies its investments as follows:
Held for trading

These are securities, which are acquired with the intention to trade by taking advantages of short term market / interest rate
movements and are carried at market value. Cost of investment is determined on weighted average basis. These securities are
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required to be sold within 90 days from the date of their classification as 'Held for trading' under normal circumstances, in
accordance with the requirernents of State Bank of Pakistan.

Held to maturity

These are securities with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity in respect of which the Company has the positive
intent and ability to hold to maturity.

Available for sale

Investments that do not fall under the held for trading or held to maturity categories are classified as available for sale,

All purchases and sales of investments that require delivery within the time frame established by regulations or market

convention are recognised at the trade date. Trade date is the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the
investment.

Initial Recognition

Investments other than those categorised as held for trading are initially recognised at fair value which includes transaction
costs associated with the investment. Investments classified as held for trading are initially recognised at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in the profit and loss account,

Subsequent Measurement

Investments in government securities and quoted investments, categorized as 'held for trading' and ‘available for sale' are
valued at rates quoted on PKRY, PKFRV and Pakistan Stock Exchange {PSX) as at the date of statement of financial position
respectively. Any surplus or deficit arising as a resuit of revaluation of securities categorised as ‘held for trading' is taken to
profit and loss account and that of ‘available for sale' is taken to the statement of financial position, and shown within equity in
accordance with the requirements of State Bank of Pakistan.

Management has determined fair value of certain investments by using quotations from active market, and review of conditions
and information about the financia! instruments. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve some uncertainties and
matter of judgment {e.g. evaluation, interest rates, etc.} and therefore, cannot be determined with precision.

Investments classified as "held-to-maturity’ are steted at their amortized cost less impairment in valus, if any.

Unquoted equity securities are valued at the lower of cost and break-up value less impairment losses, if any. Break-up value of
unquoted equity securities is calculated with reference to the net assets of the investee company as per the latest available
audited financial statements. investments in subsidiaries and asscciates, if any {which qualify for accounting under Internat|ondl
Accounting Standard - 28) are carried at cost less impairment, if any,

Premium or discount on acquisition of investments is amortised through the profit and foss account over the ramaining period
till maturity using effective interest method.

Impairment

Impairment loss on investments in respect of available for sale (except term finance certificates and sukuks) and held to
maturity is recognised based on management's assessment of objective evidence of impairment as a result of ane or more
events that may have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the investments. A significant or prolonged decline in fair
value of a listed equity investment below its cost is also considered an objective evidence of impairment. Provision for
diminution in the vaive of Term Finance Certificates and Sukuks is made as per the Prudentiel Regulations issued hy the State
Bank of Pakistan. In case of impairment of available for sale securities, the cumulative loss that has been recognised in
surplus/deficit on revaluation of securities in the statement of changes of equity is transferred to profit or loss account. FOr
investments cateraorised as held to maturitv. the impairment [oss is recoanised in the orofit and loss account.

Advances

The Company reviews its loan portfolic to assess the amount of nen-performing advances and provision required there against
on a regular basis. While assessing this requirement various factors including the delinquency in the account, financial position
of the borrowers and the requirements of the Prudential Regulations are considered.

Loans and advances

Advances are stated net of specific provision, Specific provision for doubtful debts is determined on the basis of Prudential
Reguiations issued by SBP and the other directives issued by the SBP and charged to the profit and loss account, These;
regulations prescribe an age based criteria {as supplemented by subjective evaluation of advances) for classification of non-

performing loans and advances and computing provision / allowance there against. Advances are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of recovery.
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4.9

4.10

Finance lease receivables

Leases in which the Company transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidenta! to the ownership of an asset to the
lessees are classitied as finance leases. A receivable is recognised at an amount equal to the present value of the minimum

lease payments, including any guaranteed residual value which are included in the financial statements as “net investment in
finance lease”,

Fixed Assets
Capital work in progress

Capitat work in progress are stated at cost Jess impairment, if any. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets
become available for use.

Property and equipment - owned

Operating fixed assets excent capital work in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciaticn and impairment loss, if
any. Depreciation is charged to profit and loss account on straight line basis so as to write-off the assets aver their expected
economic lives at the rates specified in note 10.3 to these financial statements. The depreciation charge for the yaer is
calculated after taking into account residuat value, if any. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed
and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. Full month depreciation is charged in the month the assets are
aveilable for use and no depreciation is charged in the month of disposal.

Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred. Subsequent expenditure is
capitalised enly when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in cperating fixed assets.

Gains and losses on disposal of assets are included in profit and loss account. The Company reviews the rate of depreciation /
useful life, residual values and value of assets for possible impairment on an annual basis, Any change in the estimates in future

years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of operating fixed assets with a corresponding effect on
depreciation charge and impairment,

Intangible assets

Intangible assets having a finite useful life are stated st cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any,
Intangible assets are amortisad from the month when these are available for use, using the straight line method, whereby the
cost of an intangible asset is amortised over the period which takes into account the economic benefits that will be available to
the Company. The residual value, useful life and amortisation method is reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting
date.

Non - banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims

Nen - banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims are initially measured at settlement amount and upon revaluation, are
carried at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation and impairment, i any. These sssets are revalued as per SBP's
requirement by independent professionally qualified valuers to ensure thet their net carrying vaiue does not differ materially
from their fair value. A surplus arising on revaluation of property is ¢redited to the 'surplus on revaluation of fixed assets'
account and any deficit arising on revaluation is taken to profit and loss account directly. Legal fees, transfer costs and direct
costs of acquiring title of property is charged to profit and loss account and not capitalised.

Borrowings and deposits

Borrowings and deposits are recorded at the amount of proceeds received. Mark-up on borrowings and deposits are charged to
profit and loss account on a time proportion basis.

Staff retirement henefit

Defined benefit plan

The Company operates an approved funded gratuity scheme for ali its permanent employees who have completed the
qualifying period under the scheme. Tha schema is administered by a Bosard of Trustees and centributions therein are made in
accordance with the actuarial recommendations. The valuation in this regard is carried out at each balance sheet date, using the
Projected Unit Credit Method for the vaiuation of the scheme.

Gratuity is payable to staff on completion of two years of service.

Past service cost is the change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from a plan amendment or
curtailment. The Company recognises past service cost as an expense at the earlier of the following dates:
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(a) when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs; or
(b) and when the Company recognises related restructuring costs or termination benefits.

The Company has adopted certain actuarial assumptions as disclosed in the note 36.3 for valuation of defined benefit obligation
and fair value of plan assets, based on actuarial advice.

5

Defined contribution plan

The Company operates a recognised provident fund scheme for its employees. Equal monthly contributions are made, both by
the Company and the employees, to the fund at the rate of 10% of the basic salary.

Employees' compensated absences

Employees' entitlement to annual leave is recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for estimated
liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by the employee against un-availed leaves upto the reporting date.

Foreign currencies
Transaction and balances in foreign currencies

Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistan Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing at the
reporting date. Foreign currency transactions during the year are recorded at the rates prevailing on the date of transaction.

Functional and presentation currency

Itens included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Company operates. The financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and
presentation currency.

Translation gains and losses

Exchange gains and losses are included in profit and loss account.

Remuneration Framework

In order to align the remuneration practices in Pakistan with the international standards and best practices, the SBP issued
Guidelines on Remuneration Practices through its BPRD circular no. 02 dated March 03, 2016, which were subsequently
revised through BPRD Circular No. 01 dated January 25, 2017.

In accordance with these guidelines, the Company has developed a comprehensive remuneration framework. The aim of this
framework is to promote an effective risk management culture, and to ensure that the remuneration practice at the Company is
in line with the Company's objectives taking into consideration all risks that the Company may face. As a result, a fair, objective,
transparent and sound remuneration policy, aligned with risks and responsibilities of Financial Intermediation has been put in
place. The framework was reviewed and recommended by the Board's Human Resource & Remuneration Committee (BHRRC)
and approved by the Board of Directors (BoD) during the year.

Under the policy, all employees across the Company who are materially responsible for risk taking - Material Risk Takers
(MRTs), or risk controlling activities - Material Risk Controllers (MRCs) are identified. The remuneration of these MRTs and
MRCs is dependent upon the achievement of performance measured through risk-adjusted balance scorecards which include
financial and non-financial! qualitative performance indicators including compliance with internal policies! procedures! contrals,
customer experience, as well as certain risk-adjusting factors (negative earners) such as regulatory compliance, frauds,
complaints etc. All other individuals who do not fall within the criteria of MRTs and MRCs continue to be governed through the
Company's existing HR policy. The features of total compensation i.e. fixed remuneration as well as variable remuneration
offered through performance bonuses have been disclosed in note 38.1 to these financial statements.

A certain portion of the variable compensation of the MRTs and MRCs shall now be made subject to mandatory deferrals for a
defined pericd, thus creating alignment between the employees' and stakeholders' interests and reinforcing that compensation
is appropriately linked to longer-term sustainable performance. Deferred remuneration, especially with risk adjustments,
improves risk-taking incentives because the amount ultimately received by employees can be made to depend on risk
outcomes, and shall vest proportionately over the deferral period following the year of variable remuneration award, subject to

any malus trigger adjustments. Under the Company's framework, the deferral percentages range between 10 to 15 percent
while the deferral period is set at three years.

The payouts for variable compensation for the performance year 2019 for MRTs and MRCs shall be based on the revised
mechanism which takes into consideration factors {such as position within the organization, roles and responsibilities, risk
alignment, and performance against KPIs) for differentiating the variable pays across employees or group of employees under
the framework. Furthermore, the balanced scorecards to be used for performance assessment shall also take into
consideration that MRCs are remunerated independently of the functions they oversee. The deferral pool so created, shall be
transferred to a fund established specifically for this purpose. The fund shall be set up outside the Company and shall be
managed by Trustees that the Company may appoint. The process of setting up the fund is currently in process. The

e



b

4.15

4.16

4,17

4.18

4,19

disclosures required under the SBP's Guideiines on Remuneration Practices are included as part of these financial statements.

Revenue recognition

Mark-up / interest on advances & return on investmants are recognised on time proportion basisi using the effactive vield on
the arrangement / instruments, except for non performing advances & investments, the income is 7ecognised on receipt basis.

Interest / return / mark-up on rescheduled / restructured advances and investrnents is recognised as permitted by the Prudential
Regulations issued by the SBP.

A gain / loss on sale of securities is recognised in profit and loss account at the time of sale of relevant securities.

The surpius / deficit arising on revalustion of the Company's held for trading investment portfolio is taken to the profit and loss
account.

Premium or discount on acquisition of investments is amontised through the profit and loss account over the remaining period
through effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive the dividend is established.
Fee and commission income is recognised upen performance of obligation.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in profit and loss account except to
the extent that it relates to the items recognised directly in equity or surplus on revaluation of assets, in which case it is
recognisad in equity or surplus on revaluation of assets.

Current

Provision for current taxation is based on the taxable income &t the current rates of taxation after taking into account available
tax credit and rebates, if any. The charge for current tax aiso includes adjustments, where considered necessary relating to prioe
years, which arises from assessments /developments made during the year. The charge for current tax is calculsted using
prevailing tax rates enacted at the balance sheet date and, any adjustments 1o tax payable relating to prior years.

In making the estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company, the management considers the current income
tax laws and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issuwes in the past. In making the provisions for deferred taxes,
estimates of the Company's future taxable profits are also taken into account.

Deferrad

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method on ali temporary differences between the amounts attributed to the
assets and liabilities for financial reparting purposes end amounts used for taxation purpose. Deferred tax is measured st the
tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits would be available against
which it can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is not probable that refated tax
benefits will be realised.

Impairment

The carrying amount of the Company's assets {cther than deferred tax asset) are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment, If such indicstion exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoversble amount.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit and loss account. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised.

Off setting

Financial assets and financial iabilities are only offset and the net amount is reparted in the financial statements when there is &

tegally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amount and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and to settle the liabitities simultaneously.

Provisions, Contingent assets and Contingent liabilities

Other provisions are recognised when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is
probable that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits would be required to settie the obligation and a reliable
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4.22

4.23

4.24

4.25

4.25.1

4.25.2

4.26

estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed st each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate.

Contingent assets are not recognised and are also not disclosed unless an inflow of aconomic benefits is probable. Contingent

liabitities are not recognised but disclosed unless the prebability of an outflow of resources embedying econamic benefits are
remote.

Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party 1o the contractug|
provision of the instrument. Financial assets are de-recognised when the contractual right future cash flows from the asset
expires or is transferred along with the risk and reward of the asset. Financial liabilities are de-recognised when obligation

specific in the contract discharge, cancel or expire. Any gain or loss on derecognition of the financial asset and fiability is
recognised in the profit or loss account of the current year,

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at their fair value on the date on which the derivative contract is entered
inte and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Al derivative financial instruments are carried as asset when fair value is

positive and liabilities when fair value is negative. Any change in the value of derivative finangial instruments is taken to the
profit and loss account.

Dividend distribution

Dividend and appropriaticn 1o reserves, except approptiation which is required by the law after the reperting date, is recognised
as liability in the Company's financial statements in the period in which these are approved.

Earnings per share

The Company presents earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS is caiculated by dividing the profit or loss

attributable to ordinary sharehalders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the year,

Provisions against off - balance sheet obligations

The Company, in the ordinary course of business, issues guarantees. The commission against such contracts is recognised in
the profit and loss account under 'fees and commission income" over the period of contracts, The Company's liability under
such contracts is measured at the higher of the'amount representing unearned commission income at the reporting date and
the best estimate of the amount expected 1o settle any financiat obligation arising under such contracts.

Segment reporting

A segment is distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged in providing products ar services (business segment),
o7 in providing products or services within a particular economic environment {geographical segment), which is subiect to risks

and rewards that are different from those of other segments. The Company's primary format of reporting is based on business
segments.

Business segments
Following are the main segments of the Company:

Corporate finance and It includes loans, advances, leases and other transactions with corporate customers. Further, it
commercial banking undertakes advisory services including mergers and acquisitions, listed debt syndication, trustee
activities and other investrment banking activities.

Trading & Sales {other Undentakes Company's fund management activities through leveraging and investing in liquid
than Capital Market) assets such as short term placements, government securities and reverse repo activities. It

carries out spread based activities in the inter bank market and manages the interest rate risk
exposure of the Company.

Capital Market Includes trading in listed securities with a view to trade and earn the benefit of market
fluctuations and to hold securities for dividend income and capital gains.

Geographical segments
The Company operates only in Pakistan.
Statutory reserve

Every Bank / DFI incorporated in Pakistan is required to transfer 20% of its profit to a statutory reserve until the reserve equals
share capital, thereafter 10% of the profit of the DF! is to be transferred to this reserve.
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5.1

5.2

6.1

7.1

7.2

CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS Note 2019 2018
{Rupees in '000)

1” hand L . . . e
Local currency 55 70
Foreign currency 4,694 4,153

4,749 4,223

With State Bank of Pakistan in
Local currency current account 5.1 41,009 £8,363

With National Bank of Pakistan in
Local currency cutrent account 17 12
Local currency deposit account 52 608 5AB

625 558
46,383 73,144

This represents current account maintained for minimum cash reserve required to be maintained
with the State Bank of Pakistan in accordance with its requirements of BSD Circular No. 04 dated
May 22, 2004.

This carries mark-up at the rate 10.25% per annum {2018: 6.5%).

BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS Note 2019 2018
(Rupees in '000)
In Pakistan
tn current account 12,961 33.268
In deposit account 6.1 70,790 27,385

83,781 60,653

These deposit accounts carry annual mark-up rate of 6.30% to 11.25% (2018: 3.25% 1o 8%).

LENDINGS TC FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS Note 2019 2018
{Rupees in '000)

Calt / clean money lendings - -
Certificate of Investment 7.2 150,000 . 105,000

150,000 105,000

Particulars of lendings

In locat currency 150,000 105,600

These carry mark-up rates upto 15.15% (2018: 12.50%) per annum, with maturity upto 10 February
2020 {2018 29 March 2019).
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8.1

8.2

INVESTMENTS

Investments by type:

Held-for-trading securities
Shares

Avallable-for-sale securities
Federal Government securities
Shares

Non Government Debt Securities
Units of Mutual Funds

Held-to-maturity securities
Commercial Papers

Total Investments

Investments by segments

Federal Government securities
Market Treasury Bills
Pakistan Investment Bonds

Shares
Listed Companies

Non Government Debt Securities
Term Finance Certificate - Listed
Term Finance Certificate - Unlisted
Sukkuk Bonds

. Units in Mutual Funds

Commercial Papers

Total Investments

Investments given as collateral

Market Treasury Bills
Carrying value
Deficit

Pakistan Investment Bonds
Carrying value
Deficit

Shares
Carrying value
Impairment
Deficit

Term Finance Certificates
Carrying value
Deficit

e

Note

2018

2018
Cost / Provision Cost Provision 7
amortised for s:;'::::ﬂf c;r:]yi ng amortised for S[;ra[ui]f C:'riying
cost diminution b cost diminution Al e
(Rupees in '000)
36,381 (468) 35,913 84,075 (B,010) 76,065
36,381 (a88) 35,913 84,075 - (8,010) 76,065
83&84
8,381,569 - 107,775 8,489,344 5,276,657 - (16,6811) 5,261,046
976,459 (79,508) 26,865 923,816 953,722 (135,043 (62,239) 756,440
4,929,282 (32,636) (68,399) 4,828,247 4,986,574 (12,956) (6,924) 4,966,694
- ® - - 274,118 (74,436) - 199,683
14,287,310 (112,144) 66,241 14,241,407 11,480,972 {222,435) (84,674) 11,183,863
8.5
386,981 - - 386,981 - - - -
386,981 - - 386,981 - - = -
14,710,672 (112,144) 65,773 14,664,301 11,675,047 (222,435) (92,684) 11,269,928
2019 2018
Cost / Provision Cost / Provision S
amortised for S‘gr;: :; ; C;r::::g amortised for S‘;ZI;:;)! C\a’,:?' i
cost diminution cost diminution be
(Rup in '"000)
5,616,833 3,115 5,619,954 3,863,632 = (1,612) 3,962,120
2,764,730 104,660 2,869,390 1,312,925 (13,999) 1,298,926
8,381,569 107,775 8,489,344 5,276,557 {15,611) 5,261,046
1,012,840 (79,508) 26,397 959,729 1,037,797 (135,043) (70,249) 832,505
1,600,778 - (15,238} 1,585,540 1,666,208 = (9,000} 1,546,209
2,245,382 (11,245) (43,123) 2,191,014 2,418,108 (11,245) 1,745 2,409,608
1,083,122 (21,391) (10,038) 1,051,693 1,012,257 (1,711) 331 1,010,877
4,929,282 (32,636) (68,399) 4,828,247 4,986,574 (12,856) (6,924) 4,866,694
- - - - 274,118 {74,436) 199,683
386,981 - - 386,981 - -
14,710,672 (112,144) 65,773 14,664,301 11,675,047 (222,435) (92,684) 11,269,928
SL A === SRS
2018 2018
(Rupees in '000)
2,672,582 2,715,515
3,674 (1,200)
2,676,256 2,714,315
2,735,349 1,312,824
121,866 (13,898)
2,857,215 1,298,926
104,675 106,083
(14,732) (17,361)
2,812 (16,638)
92,755 72,094
- 488,100
- 124
499,224




8.3

8.3.1

8.3.2

8.3.21

8.4

8.4.1

8.4.2

Provision for diminution in value of investments
Available-For-Sale Investment

Opening balance

2019 2018
(Rupees in '000)

222,436 82,797
Charge / reversals
Charge for the year 47,217 166,469
Reversal on disposals (157,509) (26,830)
(110,292) 139,639
Closing Balance 112,144 222,436
Particulars of provision against debt securities
2019 2018
Non- Non-
Performing Performing
Category of classification Investments Provision Investments Provision
mmmmmmsmennnneaseneoo- (RUpees in "000)------nnemmnemennenen
Domestic
Other assets especially mentioned - - - 5
Substandard - - - -
Doubtful - - - -
Loss 8.3.2.1 48,882 (32,636) 54,336 (12,956)
48,882 (32,636) 54,336 (12,956)

The Company has availed the benefit of Forced Sales Value (FSV) against the non-performing investment. Had this
benefit of FSV not been taken by the Company, the specific provision against non-performing investment would
have been higher by PKR 16.25 million. Further, this amount arising from availing the benefit of FSV is not available
for distribution amongst the shareholders either in the form of cash or stock dividend.

Quality of Available for Sale Securities

Details regarding quality of available for sale (AFS) securities are as follows:

Federal Government Securities - Government guaranteed

Market Treasury Bills
Pakistan Investment Bonds

Shares

Listed Companies
- Cement
- Fertilizer
- Commercial Banks
- Insurance
- Textile Composite
- Refinery
- Power Generation and Distribution
- Oil and Gas Exploration Companies
- Oil and Gas Marketing Companies
- Engineering
- Automobile Assembler
- Automobile Parts and Accessories
- Fixed Line Telecommunication
- Pharmaceuticals
- Food Producers
- Industrial Metals and Mining
- Household Goods
- Media
- Technology Hardware and Equipment
- Real Estate Investment Trust
- Paper & Board
- Personal goods

\eph—

2019 2018

Note Cost

(Rupees in '000)

86 5,616,839 3,963,632
87 2,764,730 1,312,925
8,381,569 5,276,657
23,483 44,913
153,643 169,403
284,843 253,887
26,869 33,838
144,110 104,947
475 475
109,350 79,478
31,549 35,357
55,205 43,008
9,012 10,086
16,666 43,539
12,661 21,176
24,096 29,956
8,468 14,188
4,861 11,613
8,254 8,254
22,629 24,395
21,763 21,087
4,397 -
843 B43
6,032 6,032
7,252 7,250
T 976,459 053,720
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8.4.3 Non Government Debt Securities

8.43.1 Listed

- AAA
- AA+, AA, AD-
-A+ A A-

8.4.3.2 Unlisted

- AA+, AA, AA-

- A4 A, A

- BBB+, BBB, BBB-
- Unrated

844 Mutual Funds

8.5 Particulars relating to Held to Maturity securities are as follows:

Non Government Debt Securities- Unlisted

- AA+

2019 2018
Cost
{Rupees in '000}

495,924 1,094,521
344,244 -
760,610 460,688
1,600,778 1,565,209
2019 2018
Cost

{Rupees in '000)

1,803,868 1,217,569
1,475,754 1,190,414
48,882 11,245
3,328,504 2,419,218
2019 2018
Cost

{Rupees in '000)

- 274,119

2019 2018
Cost
{Rupees in '000)

386,981 -

386,981 -

8.5.1 The market value of securities classified as held-to-maturity as at December 31, 2018 amounted to

Rs. 386.981 million {December 31, 2018: Nil).

8.6 Market treasury bills carry yield ranging from 13.256% to 14.188% (2018: 6.01% to 10.30%) per

annum with maturities upte 18 Nov 2020 {2018: 28 Feb 2019).

8.7 The investments in Pakistan investment bonds are maturing upto 19 Sep 2029 (2018: 28 June 2028)
and the effective yield ranges from 7.33% to 14.60% (2018: 6.57% to 9.35%) per annum.
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ADVANCES

Note Performing Non Performing Total
2019 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
{Rupees in '000)

Loans, cash credits, running financas, etc. 8.2 4,549,796 5,115,626 1,822,853 1,712,086 6,372,649 6,827,712
Istamic financing and related assets 276,275 332,984 - - 276,275 332,984
Bilis discounted and purchased - 35,000 - - - 35,000
Advances - gioss 8.3 4,826,071 5,483,610 1,822,853 1,712,686 6,648,924 7,195,698
Provision against advances
- Specific 8.5 - l I - | l [1,259.21 Ell I {971,770 {1,258,215) (871,770
- General - - - - - -

- - {1,259,215) {871,770) {1,259,215] 971,770
Advances - net of provision 4,826,071 5483610 563,638 740,316 5,389,709 8,223,828

These include personal loans and house loans advanced to employses in eccordance with their terms of employment. These personal losns and house foans
carry mark-up at the retes of 3% and 5% {2018: 3% and 5%} raspectively.

Includes Net Investment in Finance Lease as disclosed below:

2018 2018
Not jater than Later than Total Not later then  Later than one Total
one year one and less one yest and less then
than five years five years

{Rupees in "000}

Lease rentals receivable 243,639 201,168 444,807 235,806 378,465 615,271
Residuat value 55,503 94,421 148,924 5,469 131,841 138,310
Minimum lesse payments 299,142 295,589 594,731 242,278 511,306 753,581
Financial charges for future pariods [37.807) {13,874} {51.781) {4B,180) {50,158) 195,338)
Prasent value of minimum !gase payments 261,335 281,615 542,950 194,095 461,148 €55,243

The Campeny's implicit rate of return on leases ranges between 14.34% and 20.00% {2018: 8.27% and 15.94%) per annum. These are secured against leases
assets and sacurity deposits generally upto 38% (2018: 27%) of the cost of {easaed assets.

Lease rentals receivad during the year aggregato to Rs. 308 million (2018: Rs. 181 million).

2018 ma
Particulars of advances {Gross) {Rupess In '000)
I local currescy 4,826,071 5.483,610
In fareign currencles - -

4,826,071 5,483,610
Advances include Rs. 1,822,852 million (2018: Bs. 1,712.086 million) which has been placed under non-parforming status as detailed below:

_ 2019 2018
Category of Classification Non Non
Performing Provision Pesforming Provision
Loans Loans

weees [REpEES N "D00) —oommmeome e

Domaestic
Other Assets Especially Mentioned 111,473 “ - -
Substandard 12,308 2,937 165,656 31,089
Doubtful - - 235,803 -
Loss 1,699,074 1,256,278 1,310,627 940.71%
1,822,853 1,258,215 1,712,086 971.770
Particulars of provision against advances 2019 20iB
Specific General Total Specific Genara! Tosal
{Rupees in '000}
Opening balance 971,770 - 971,770 854,246 - 854,246
Charge for the year 287,445 ‘ - ‘ l 287,445 117,624 - ‘ l 117,524
Reversals - - " - - -
287,445 - 287,445 117,524 - 117.624
Amounts written off - - - - - -
Ciosing balznce 1,258,215 - 1,259,215 971,770 - 971.770
Particulars of provision agalnst advances 2019 2018
Spedific General Total Specific General Total
{Rupees in '000)
In local currancy 1,259,215 i I - l I 1,259,215 ‘ ‘ 971,770 | r - l I 971,770 ,
In foreign currencies - - - - . R
1,258,215 - 1,259,215 971,770 - 971,770

In accordance with BSD Circular No. 1 dated 21 October 2011 issued by the SBP, the Company has availed the benefit of Forcad Sales Value (FSV) against the
non-parforming advances. Had this benefit of FSV not been taken by tha Company, the specific pravision against non-performing edvences would have been
higher by PXR 442,936 million (2018: Rs. 488 million}. Further, this amount arising from availing the banefit of FSV is not available for distdbution amongst the
sharehe!ders either in the form of cash or stock dividend,
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FIXED ASSETS

Capitel work-in-progress
Property and equipment
Right of use assets
Capital work-in-progress

Civil works

Note 2019

2018

{Rupees in '000)

10.1 183,080

183,090

10.3 9,631 9,941
10.6 36,988 A

325,708 93,031

10.2 183,090 183,090

This represents office space and related parking space situated at The Ocean Mall, Clifton, Karachi purchased by the
Company to transfer its registered and principal office.

Property and Equipment

At 01 January 2019

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

Year ended 31 December 2019
Opening net book value
Additions

Disposals

Depreciation charge

Closing net bock value

At 31 December 2019
Cost

Accumuizted depreciation
Net book vaiue

Rate of depreciation {percentage)

At 01 January 2018

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

Year ended 31 December 2018
Opening net book value
Additions

Disposals

Depreciation charge

Closing net book value

At 31 December 2018
Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

Rate of depreciation [percentage)

\oxn—

2019
Furniture and Electrical, Vehicles Total
fixture office and
computer
equipment
(Rupees in '000)
35,481 34,31 15,469 85,281
{35,165} {31,803} (8,372) {75,340)
316 2528 7,087 9,941
316 2,528 7,097 9,941
667 3,706 - 4,373
- {93} - {93}
{152} (1,737) {2,661) {4,590)
791 4,404 4,436 9,631
36,148 34,834 15,389 86,371
(35,357) (30,430) {10,953} (76,740}
791 4,404 4,436 9,631
20% 20%-25% 25%
2018
Furniture and Electrical, office Vehictes Total
fixture and cormputer
equipment
{Rupees in '000)
35,638 35,437 16,469 108,046
{33,628} {32,598} 8,711} (94,539}
1,910 2.839 9,758 14,507
1,910 2,839 9,758 14,807
- 1,417 - 1,417
- {B6) - {56}
{1,595) (1,672} (2,661) (5,927)
315 2,529 7,097 8,941
35,481 34,331 15,469 85,281
(35,165} (31,803} (8,372} (75,340)
316 2,528 7,097 9,941
20% 20%-28% 25%
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The gross cost of fully depreciated assets still in use is as follows;

Furniture and fixture

Electrical, office and computer equipment
Vehicles

The gross cost and sale proceeds of disposals / write-offs:

Asset

MOBILE PHONE {Samsung Galaxy Note 5)
MOSILE PHONE (IPhone 7 - 128 GB)
MOBILE PHONE (IPhcne 7 - 32 GB}
MOBILE PHONE {IPHONE 7 Plus)

MOBILE PHONE (Samsung Galaxy A-7}
MOBILE PHONE {Samsung Galaxy S-7 Edge
MOBILE PHONE {Appfe IPHONE -8 Plus)
MOBILE PHONE (Samsung Galaxy Note 8)

Right of use assaets

At 01 January 2019

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

Yaar ended 31 Dacembor 2019
Opening net book value
Additions

Disposals

Depreciation charge

Closing net hook value

At 31 Dacember 2019
Cost

Accumulated depreciaticn
Net book value

Rate of depreciaticn {percentage)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

At 01.January
Cost

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Net book value

Year ended 31 Decomber
Opening net book value
Additions - Directly purchased
Amortisation charge

Closing net book value

At 31 December
Cost

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Net book value

Rate of amortisation {percentage;}

The gross cost of fully emortised assets still in use is as follows;

Software Licenses

\oh

Cost

45,600
60,000
55,000
50,000
45,000
50,000
50,000
45,006

2013 2018
{Rupees in '000}
23,935 23,643
27,793 27,502
4,745 4,825
56,473 55,970
Sale Price Mode Purchaser

As per entittement.

2019

Seadia Shaikh
Jahangeer Jamil
Bilal Darr

Amir Aizaz

Habib Amear Ali
Salman Raza

Syad M Amin Kazmi
Syed Afak Hussain

2018

(Rupees in '000)

63,184
{9,692}

53492

53,492

(18,504}

36,888

63,184
{26,1986]

36,988

10%

2018
Computer
software

2018

Computer software

{Rupees in '000)

19,193 19,193
{18,982} {18,788}
211 405
21 405
349 -
{246} {194}
314 211
19,542 19,192
{19,228) {18,982)
314 211
33% 33%
2018 2018
(Rupeas in 'Q00}
19,040 18,989
19,040 18,589
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12.

13.

13.1

13.2

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Deductible Temporary Differences on

- Capital losses carried forward

- Post retirement employee benefits

- Deficit on revaluation of investments

- Accelerated tax depreciation

- Provision against advances, off balance sheet etc.
- Provision against investments

- Lease liabilities

- Others

Taxable Temporary Differences on

- Surplus on revaluation of investments
- Right of use asset

- Accelerated tax depreciation

- Lease assets

- Others

Deductible Temporary Differances on

- Tax losses carried forward

- Post retirement employee benefits

- Deficit on revaluation of investments

- Accelerated tax depreciation

- Provision against advances, off balance sheet etc.
- Provision against investments

- Others

Taxable Temporary Differences on

- Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets
- Surplus on revaluation of investments
- Accelerated tax depreciation

- Lease assets

- Others

OTHER ASSETS

Income / Mark-up accrued in local currency - net of provision
Advances, deposits, advance rent and other prepayments

Advance taxation {payments less provisions)
Non-banking asset acquired in satisfaction of claims
Dividend receivable

Security deposits

Less: Provision held against other assets
Other Assets (Net of Provision)

Surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets acquired in satistaction of claims

Other Assets - total

Market value of Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims

Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims

Opening Balance
Less: Depreciaticn for the year
Closing Balance

et

2018
At 01 January Recognised in Recgonised in At 31
2019 profit and loss other December 2019
account comprehensive
income
(Rupees in 000)
- 15,270 - 15,270
1,484 {1,484) (516) {516)
16,471 (3,312) (6,793) 6,366
12,571 (9,377) - 3,194
281,813 83,359 - 365,172
64,505 (47,683) - 16,822
- 12,334 - 12,334
1,016 (132) - 884
377,860 48,975 (7,309) 419,526
(50) - (16,116) (16,166)
- (10,727) - (10,727)
(5,734) (1,140) (6,874)
(25,039) 14,807 - (10,232)
(553) 553 - -
(31,376) 3,493 16,116) (43,999)
346,484 52,468 23,425) 375,527
2018
At 01 January Recognised in Recgonised in At 31 December
2018 profit and loss other 2018
account comprehensive
income
(Rupees in 000)
2,738 (1,661) 406 1,484
11,288 5,182 - 16,471
3,723 8,848 - 12,571
256,274 25,5639 - 281,813
14,363 50,142 - 64,505
2,268 (1,252) = 1,016
290,655 86,798 408 377,860
(6,162) (283) 6,395 (50)
(1,680) (4,054) = (6,734)
(22,259) (2,780) b (25,039)
= (553 = (b53)
(30,101) (7,670) 6,395 (31,376)
260,564 79,128 6,801 346,484
Note 2018 2018
{Rupees in '000)
1,458,285 1,132,962
93,685 11,494
'39,930 15,694
13.1 & 13.2 89,632 94,905
- 514
6,231 7,231
1,687,763 1,262,800
13.3 (1,152,868) (999,740)
534,895 263,060
534,895 263,060
171,000 119,700
94,905 100,177
5,273 5,272
89,632 94,905




2018 2018

13.3 Provision held against other assets Note {Rupees in '000)
Opening Balance - 999,740 682,147
Add: Provision auring the year 153,128 317,593
Clesing Balaace 1,152 868 999 740G
14, CONTINGENT ASSETS
There are no conlingenti assels as al 1he balance sheet date.
15. BORROWINGS
Details of borrowings secured / unsecured
Secured
Bosrowings from State Bank of Pakistan- Under financing facility
for Imported & Locally Manufactured Piant & Machinery (LTFF) 181 1,655,047 712,115
Repurchase agreement borrewings 152 5,323,734 3,994,244
Term borrowings 183 3,650,000 2,062,500
Total Secured 10,628,781 6,768,859
Unsecured
Call borrowings 214,000 1,147,000
Total Unsecured 10,842,781 7,915,859

15.1 The Company has entered into agreement with the SBP for extending Long Term Financing Facility (LTFF) far Imperted & Locally Manufactured Plant &
Machinery. These borrowings carry mark-up rate of 2.0% per annum {2018: 2.0%). These borrowings will mature by 2029 (2018: 2027).

15.2 These carry mark-up st the rates ranging from 13,35% to 13.70% per annum (2018: 10.20% to 10.50% per annum) and are secured against

government securities having carrying amount of PXR 5,408 billion {2018: PKR 4,028 billion}. These borrowings will mature up to February 2020 (2018:
February 2019),

15.3 These represent finances obtained from Allied Bank Limited to finance reguiar business operations of the Company. These finances are secured by
pledge of listed and unlisted Term finance cerlificates. It carries mark up at the rate of & months KIBOR +0.10% to 0.25% per annum. These are.
g . repayable in semi annua! instaliments and shall be repaid by 2024,

- 15.4  Particulars of borrowings with respect to Currencies 2018 2018
[Rupees in '000}

inlocal eurrency 10,842,781 7,915,859
In foreigr currencies - -
10,842,781 7.915 859
£ 16.  DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS
- Note 2019 2018
& In local fn Foreign In local in Foreign
Gurrency Currencies Total Cusrency Currencies Total
{Rupees in '060}
: Customers
Term deposits 162 | 209,265 - 209,265 | | 711,906 - 711.806 |
209,265 - 209,265 711,906 - 711,906
2 Financial Institutions
: Term deposits 163 1 566,058 - 566,058 1| | 509,818 - 508,818 ]
sk 566,058 - 566,058 508,818 - 509,818
775,323 - 775,323 1,227,724 - 1,221,724
16.1 Composition of deposits Note 2019 - 2018
- : {Rupess in '000)
- Individuals 16.4 45,139 41,181
- Public Sector Entities - 331,878
» - Non-Banking Financizl Institutions 566,058 503,818
& - Private Sector 160,126 338,867
775,323 1,241,724
1 162 The mark-up rates on these certificate of investments (COT) range between 13.50% to $3.75% per annum {2018: B.7% to 10.75% per annum). These
i COts will mature up to June 2020 (2018 May 2019).
18.3 The matk-up rates on these certificate of invesiments (COI) is 13.80% per annum (2018: 8.85% to 10.65% per annum). These COIs will mature up to
March 2020 (2018: March 2015},
i 16.4 These include non-interest bearing certificate of investments (COl issued to employees of the Company maturing up te October 2020 {2018; October
2019).




17.

18

18.1

18.2

183

19

181

20.

OTHER LIABILITIES

- Mark-up f Retutn / Interest payable in local currency

Accrued expenses

Curent taxation {provisions less payments)
Payable to defined benefit plan
Pravision for compensated absences
Payable to aa associeted undertaking
Government levies payable

Provision for audit fee )

Advance insurance premium on lease
Security deposits against finance lease
Payable Brokerage

Provision for staft rewards

Provision for Worker's Weifare Funcd
Lease liability against right-oi-use assets

SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised capital

2019 2018
{Number of shares)

2019 2018
{Rupees in '008)
59,300 .. ... ..44,886
25,754 12,840
5,654 7.528
3,047 3,502
7,080 6,475
1,108 4,694
270 714
520 932
149,924 138,310
2,540 .
20,130 3,002
67,838 55,081
42,531 .
385,766 276,164
2019 2018

{Rupees in "000)

1!000!0005000 1!{)00 000!000 Crdinary shares of Rs. 10 each 10,000,000 10,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
600,000,000 600,000,000 Ordinary shases of Rs.10 each and fully paid in cash 6,000,000 5,000,000
Major shareholders (holding more than 6% of total paid-up capital}
2019 2018
Number of Percentage of Number of Percentage of
shares held shareholding shares held sharehelding
Name of sharehclder
Government of Pekistan * 300,000,000 50% 300,000,000 50%
lran Foreign Investment Company ® 300,000,000 50% 300,000,000 50%
EDDEODDEOOD 100% 600,000,000 100%
* This includes nominal shares allotted to the nominee Directors of the Company nominated by Government of Pakistan and Iran Foreign Investment
Company. .
RESERVES 2618 2048

Statutory reserve
Opening balance
Transfer during the year
Closing balance

[Rupees in "00G)

840,066 840,066
48,280 -
888,356 840,066

According to BPD Circuler No. 15 dated 31 May 2004 issued by SBP, an amount not less than 20% of the after tax profits shali be transferred to create
a reserve fund till such time the reserve fund aquals the amount of the paid-up capital and after that a surmn not less than 5% of profit after tax shall be

credited to the statutory reserve,
SURPLUS / (DEFICIT} ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS Note

Surplus / {deficit) on revaluation of
- Available for sale sacurities 8.1

Deferred tax on surplus / (deficit) on revatuation of:
- Awvailable for sale securities

\C e

2019 2018
{Rupees in '000}

§6,241 | | 84,6741}
66,241 (84,674)
19,936)] | 12,973 |
13,936 12,973

56,305 171,701]




21,

21.1

21.2

21.3

214

22,

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

For Tax year 2013, The Company has filed appeal before ATIR against the Order passed by CIRA, which is pending
for hearing, where any adverse decision may increase the liability of the company by approximately PKR 5.5 Million.
In respect of tax years 2014 & 2015, the tax department has filed reference before High Court of Sindh on
allocation of expenses, where any adverse decision may increase the liability of the company by approximately PKR

107.137 Million & PKR 258.653 million respectively. The Company is confident for a favourable outcome on these
pending cases.

With respect to Tax year 2016, ADCIR amended the assessment under section 122{5A) of the Ordinance. Demand
amounting to PKR 52.049 Million was created. The company admitted tax imposed on commission income
amounting to PKR 1.031 Million, which was paid and on other issues filed apeal to CIR(A) against ADCIR order. The
CIR(A) passed order and decided the appeal and allowed partial relief. Order to the extent of spportionment of
finance cost was confirmed by CIR{A). An appeal effect order under section 124 of the Ordinance is required to be
passed for the relief aliowed by CIR{A). The company and the department has filed appeals before the Appeliate
Tribunal Infand Revenue (ATIR} on the issue decided against it. The issue is pending before ATIR and based on
decisions made in the tax year 2014 and 2015 in respect of similar cases, the Company is confident for a favourable
outcome.

With respect to Tex year 2017, ADCIR amended the assessment under section 122(5A) of the Ordinance. Demand
amounting to PKR 134.499 Million was created. The order passed under 122(5A) contained mistakes which were
rectifired subsequently, ACIR subsequently passed order under 221{1) dated 22 January 2019 and rectified demand
to PKR 46.351 Million. The company paid the demand and paid PKR 18.0 Million while remaining amount of PKR
28.351% Million was adjusted from the refund of tax year 2018. The Compay filed apeal against order before CIR{A).
The CIR(A) passed order and has decided the appeal and aflowed partial relief and accepted contention except on
apportionment of markup expenses. An appeal effect order under section 124 of the Ordinance is required to be
passed for the refief allowed by CIRIA). The company and the department has fited appeals before the Appellate
Tribunal Inland Revenue {ATIR) on the issue decided against it. The appeal is awaited to be heard. The issue is
pending before ATIR and based on decisions made in the tax {(ea; 2014 and 2015 in respect of sitnilar cases, the
Company is confident for a favourable outcome. '

With respect to Tax year 2018, ADCIR amended the assessment under section 122{6A) of the Ordinance. The ACIR
has passed order under section 122(5A} reducing the refund amounting to PKR 17.962 Million. The order passed
under 122(5A) contained mistakes which were rectifired subseguently, ACIR subsequently passed order under
221(1) dated 22 January 2019. The Company filed an appea! against the order before the CIR{A) on 31 January
2019. The CIR(A) passed order and has decided the appeal and allowed partial relief and accepted our contention
except on apportionment of markup expenses. An appeal effect order under section 124 of the Ordinance is
required to be passed for the relief allowed by CIR{A}L The issue is pending before ATIR and based on decisions
made in the tax year 2014 and 2015 in respect of similer cases, the Company is confident for a favourable ottcome.

For tax years 2018, Return filed under Universal Self-Assessment Scheme (USAS) is treated as deemed
assessment under section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Commitments in respect of repo transactions ' 2019 2018
{Rupees in '000)

Repurchase agreement borrowings _ 5,323,734 3,094,244

Direct credit substitutes ' ' 100,000 80,000

Commitments to extend credit

The Company makes commitments to extend credit in the normal course of its business but these being revocable
commitments do not attract any significant penalty or expense if the facility is unilaterally withdrawn.

OFF BALANCE SHEET FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Off balance sheet financial instruments referred to as derivatives, contracts the characteristics of which are derived
from those of underlying assets. These inciude forwards and swaps in money and toreign exchange markets. The
Company's exposure in these instruments represents equity futures. The Company also eniers into repo
transactions against government securities carrying fixed interest rates and having fixed contractuat maturities. The
liquidity risk associated with repo transactions is secured through underlying government securities.

\eae
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26.

27.

271

28,

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The Company at present does not offer structured derivative products such as interest rate swaps, forward rate swaps,
forward rate agreements or forward exchange options. However, the Company's treasury and investment group buy and sell

derivative instruments such as equity futures.

Equity futures

An equity futures contract is a standardized contract, traded on a futures counter of the stock exchange, to buy or sell a

certain underlying serip at & certain date in the future, at a specified price.

The Company uses equity futures as a hedging instrument to hedge its equity portfolio against equity price risk. Ony
selected shares are allowed to be traded on futures exchange. Equity futures give flexibility to the Company either to take
delivery on the future settlement date of to settle it by adjusting the notional value of the contract based on the current

market rates.

Maximum exposure limit to the equity futures is 10% of tier 1 capital of the Company, based cn prevailing SBP regulations.

MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EARNED

On:

a) Loans and advances

b} Investments

¢) Lendings tc financial instruments
d) Balances with banks

MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EXPENSED

Deposits

Securities sold under repurchase agreements

On borrowing frem State Bank of Pakistan- Under financing facility
- for Storage of Agricuitural Produce [FFSAP)
- for Imported & Locally Manufactured Plant & Machinery (LTFF)

Markup on Lease fizhility against right of use assets

Term Borrowing

Clean Borrowing

FEE & COMMISSION INCOME

Investment banking fees

Others

{LOSS) / GAIN ON SECURITIES

Realised

Unrealised - held for trading

Realised gain on

Shares

Units of mutual funds

OTHER INCOME

Gain on sale of fixed assets

fa\g

2019

2018
{Rupees in '000)

648,352 148,770
1,301,578 715,616
14,025 40,176
3,322 2,856
1,967,277 907,417
140,454 87,217
434,705 245,513
24,980 13,977
5,311 -
288,522 87,917
130,238 37,983
1,024,210 472,807
6,477 12,282
1,345 485
1,822 12,767
27.1 {101,802) 66,221
8.1 {468) {8,010)
{102,270} 58,211
44,932) 66,221
{56,870} -
{101,802} 66,221
2018 2018
Note {Rupees in '000)
89 -
89 -
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29.1

29.2

30.

4

OPERATING EXPENSES

Total compensation expense

Property expense
Rent & taxes
Insurance

Utilities cost

Security

Repair & maintenance
Depreciation

Information technology expenses
Software maintenance
Depreciation

Amortisation

Network charges

Others

Other operating expenses
Diractors' fees and allowances

l.egal & professional charges
Traveliing & conveyance
Depreciation

Training & development

Postage & courier charges
Communication

Stationery & printing

Marketing, advertisement & publicity
Auditors Bemunaeration

Commission and brokerage

Bank chargss and miscellaneous expenses

Total compensation expense

Fees and Allowances etc
Managerial Rernuneration
i} Fixed
ii) Variable
of which;

a) Cash Bonus f Awards &tc.

b) Bonus & Awards in Shares etc.
Chargs for defined bensfit plan
Contribution to defined cantribution plan
Rent & house maintenance
Utilities
Medical
Conveyance
Total

Auditors' remuneration

Audit fee

Half yearly review

Fee for audit of employee funds

Special certifications and sundry advisory sarvices
Tax services

Out of pocket expenses

OTHER CHARGES

Penalties imposad by State Bank of Pakistan
Loss on disposal of fixed assets

P‘\__a

Note

20.1

29.2

2019 2018
(Rupees in "000)

211,922 174,891
1,873 19,419
3,365 3.477
6,907 4,947

861 626
16,372 3.605
24,630 9,528
54,008 41,603

5,429 4,131
1,738 1,672

246 194
4,437 4,056

§32 259

12,382 10,312
3,871 2,228
7,089 4,178
17,787 23,326
1,061 343
240 218
1,251 1,201
706 83
296 209
4,324 3,641
5,082 3,797
2,396 1,391
44,113 40,615
322,425 267,421
115,491 90,878
17,500 8,035
10,316 9,392
8,904 8,676
23,206 23,338
5,801 5710
7,528 6.976
23,176 21,785
211,922 774,891
600 544
258 214
260 440
1,325 1,812
1,362 300
519 331
4,324 3,641
3 -
. 4
3 4




31
32.
32.1
£ 33.
g.
E'h_af
x 34.

PROVISIONS & WRITE OFFS - NET

{Reversal) / Provisions for diminution in
value of investments
Provisions against loans & advances

TAXATION

Current
Prior years
Deferred

Relationship between tax expense and
accounting profit

Profit before taxation

Tax on income @ 29% (2018; 29%)

Net tax effect on income taxed at reduced rates
Prior Deferred tax

Unabsorbed depreciation on leased assets
Permanent difference

Effect of change in rate of tax

Prior years charge

Others

Tax charge

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS / (LOSS}
PER SHARE

Profit for the year

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares

Basic and Diluted earnings / (loss) per share

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balance with other banks

Ao~

Note 2019 2018
(Rupees in '000)

8.3.1 {110,292) 139,639
9.5 287,445 117,624
177.153 257,163
205,483 65,088
- 35,719
{52,468) {79.128)
163,015 21,689
394,467 11,458
114,395 3,328
7,177 {6,583}
32,262 -
{16,125} -
7,966 (24,573}
. 8,68b
- 35,719
7,339 5,128
153,015 21,689
241,452 {(10,231)

{Number of shares in '000}

600,000 600,000

{Rupees per share)

0.40 (0.02)

Note 2019 2018
{(Rupees in '000}

5 46,383 73,144
6 83,751 80,653
130,134 133,797
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Revoncliistion of movemant of liabilities to caah flows srlsing fram financing activities

Balance ax ot 01 January 2019
Changes from finnncing eash flows

Aocaipts from subordinated loans - net
Dividend paid
Tote! changes from financing cash flows

Other changes
Lisbliity - relstod

Changes in bifls payable
Changes in borrowings
Changes In deposits and other sccounts
Changes in leasa liabiliting
Changes in other liabilities
- Cash based
- Won - cash besed - Actuarial lo8% on
temeasurements of defined benefit plan|
Transler of profit 1o resemve
Profit tor the year
Other adjustments
Exchange ditferences on transiation of not
investment i {oreign branches

Hakence az at 31 Dacembar 2079

Balanca ns at 01 January 2018
Changas from finaneing tash flows

Receipts from sub - ordinated loens - nat
Bividend paid
Total changas from financlng sask flows

Other ehangas
Liability - relatad

Changesin bills paysble
Changes in berrowings
Changes In deposits and athsr accounts
Changes in other liabilities
- Cesh based
- Non - cash based - Acluarial loss on
remeasurements of defined benefit plan
Transter of profit to reserve
Profit for the year
Other adiusiments
Exchanga differences on transtation of net
investmenl in foreign branches

Ealance as at 31 Dacembar 2018

STAFF STRENGTH
Permanent

On Company contract
Company's ewn stall at end of the yea:

\ca

2019
.. _— . Linbllitlas . . L L . Equity R
Blliis Borrowlngs  Daposita Sub- Lensa Other Sharg Rosarvas  Unappropristed Tatal
payable and other  ordinatad Hebilitlas linbilitles wapltal profit
acbounts debt
{Rupaes In 'G00)
- 71.915,85% 1,221,724 - . 278,164 6,000,000 840,056 2,341,328 18,55"},135
B 2,926,922 - . - - - - - 2,926,522
- - (446,401} - - - - - - {446,401)
- - - - - 105,823 - - - 105,823
. . - . . 1,779 - - - 1,778
. - . - - - - 43,250 {48,200) -
. - - - . - - - 241,452 241,452
. . - . . - - - (8,428) {B.423)
- 2,926,922 {446,401) - . 107,602 - 48,290 184,733 2,821,146
- 10,842,781 775,323 - - 385,766 6,000,000 8BB,356 2,526,058 21,415,284
2018
Liabilities Equity
y Deposits Sub- Lease Total
BBi“:‘E Borrewings  end other  ordinated liabifities hi::::;s Zm;::l Resafves u""pp:::: :Imd
peyz BCCOUMS dett P P
[Rupaas in "000}
- 6,370,738 1,814,001 - - 245594 5000000 840,066 2,452,552 17,722,951
- | - - - - I uoa.uc»ml | - - l emu.ooo}” |2m,mu||
- . - - - {100,000 - - {100,000 (200,000)
- 1845121 - - - - - - - 1,546,121
1582,277) - - - 592,277}
. - - - - 132,570 - . - 132,570
- - - - - - - - {10.231) [10,231)
- - - - - - . - (9286} {99861
- 1,545,121 (582,277} - - 132,570 - - (11,227 1,074,187
- 7015853 1,221,724 - . 278,164 _ §,000.000  B40.066 2.341.335 1B.597,138
2019 2018

{Number of ampioyans]

45 45
7 7
52 52
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36 DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN

36.1 General description

As mentioned in note 4.9, the Company operates an approved funded gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees. The benefits
under the gratuity scheme are payable on retirement at the age of 60 or earlier cessation of service, in lump sum. The benefit is equal to

one month's last drawn salary for each year of eligible service or part thereof, subject to a minimum of two years of Service.

36.2 Number of Employees under the scheme

The number of employees covered under the defined benefit schemes are 45 {2018: 45).

36.3  Principal actuarial assumptions

The actuarial valuation was carried out as at 31 December 2019 using the "Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method”. The information
provided in notes 34.3 to 34.15 has been obtained from the actuarial valuation carried out as at 31 December 2019.

Discount rate

Expected rate of return on plan assets
Expected rate of salary increase
Mortality rates (for death in service)
Rates of employee turnover

36.4 Reconciliation of (receivable from) / payable to defined benefit plans

Present value of abligations
Fair value of plan assets
Payable

36.5 Movement in defined benefit obligations

Obligations at the beginning of the year
Current service cost

Interest cost

Benefits paid during the year
Re-measurement loss / (gain)
Obligations at the end of the year

36.6 Movement in fair value of plan assets

Fair value at the beginning of the year
Interest income on plan assets

Contribution by the Company - net
Re-measurements gain / (loss) on plan assets
Fair value at the end of the year

36.7 Movement in payable under defined benefit schemes

Opening balance

Charge for the year

Contribution by the Company - net

Re-measurement (Gain) / loss recognised in other comprehensive income during the year
Closing balance

36.8 Charge for defined benefit plans
36.8.1 Cost recognised in profit and loss

Current service cost
Net interest on defined benefit liabilty / (asset)

36.8.2 Re-measurements recognised in OCl during the year

Loss / (gain) on obligation
- Demographic assumptions
- Financial assumptions
Experience adjustment
Actuarial loss on plan assets
Total Re-measurements recognised in OCI

e

2019 2018
-------- Per annum --------
11.25% 13.25%
11.25% 13.26%
11.25% 13.25%

SLIC(2001-05)-1 SLIC(2001-05)-1
Moderate Moderate
2019 2018
Note (Rupees in "000)
36.5 59,706 50,118
36.6 (55,631) (44,061)
4,075 6,058
50,119 38,046
9,623 9,006
6,888 3,949
(4,864) (354)
(1,960) (528)
59,706 50,119
44,061 33,982
6,095 3,563
5,656 8,446
(181) (1,930)
55,631 44,061
6,058 4,063
10,316 9,392
(10,520) (8,800)
(1,779) 1,402
4,075 6,058
9,523 9,008
793 386
10,316 9,392
(266) 420
(1.694) (948)
181 1,930
(1,779) 1,402




36.9

36.10

36.11

36.12

36.13

36.14

36.15

37

Components of plan assets 2019 2018

{Rupees in '000)

Cash and cash equivalents - nat

2431 266

Government Securities 50,400 19,795
Non-Government Debt Securities 2,800 24,000
556,631 44,061

Sensitivity analysis

The increase / (decrease) in the present value of defined benefit obligations as a result of change in each assumption is summarised
below:

2019 2018
{Rupaas in '000)

0.5% increase in discount rate 56,976 47,838
0.5% decrease in discount rate 62,626 52,497
0.5% increase in expected rate of sslary increase 62,683 52,644
0.6% decrease in expected rate of salary increase 56,900 47,836

2018

{Rupaes in '000}

Expeacted contributions to be paid to the funds in the next financial year 11,241
Expected charge / {raversal) for the next financial year 11,241

Maturity profile
The weighted average duration of the abligation is 9.45 years.

Distribution of timing of benefit payments {time in years)
1

2,761
2 3,319
3 3,891
4 4,563
5 4,772
6-10 139,514

Funding Policy

An Implicit, though not formally expressed objective is that the liabilities under the scheme in raspect of members in service on the
vaiuation date on a going concern basis and having regard to projected future salery increases, should be covered by the Fund on the

valuation date, the total baok reserve as of the valuation date, future contributions to the Fund, future additions to the book reserve and
future projected investment income of the Fund.

As far as possible, there is an implicit objective that the contribution to the Fund should remain reasonably stable as a percentage of
salaries, under the Actuarial Cost Method employed.

The significant risk asscciated with the staff retirement benefit plan may include:

Mortality Risk
The risk that the actual mortality experience is different. The effect depends on the beneficiaries’ service/age distribution and the benefit.

Investment Risk
The risk of the investment underperforming and not being sufficient to meet the liabilities.

Final salary risks

The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of sarvice is higher than what we assumed. Since the benefit is calculated an the final
satary, the benefit amount increases similarly.

Withdrawa! risk

The risk of higher or lower withdrawal experience than assumed. The final effect could go either way depending on the beneficiaries'
servicefage distribution and the benefit.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

The general description of the note is included in note 4.11.

2019 2018
Contributions made during the vear: {Rupees in '000}
Employer's contribution 8,904 8,676
Employees' contribution 8,904 8,676

The number of employees covered under the defined contribution plan are 45 (2018: 45),

\C(\'{\_/
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COMPENSATION OF DIREGTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

. Totsl Compansation Expense

2019

items Directors Members President / CEQ Key Other Materis!
Chairman Executives  Non-Executivas  Shariah Board Managemant  Riak Takers/
{othar than P 1 ¢ W,
CEQ) -
Foos and Allowances atc 4,015 - 2.410 - - -
Maragerigl Remunaiation
i} Fixad - - E - 32.228 30,487 -
i Total Variable - - - B - . .
af which
8) Cash Banus / Awerds - - - . - 1,188 .
b) Bonus & Awards in Shares - - - - - .
Charge for defined benefit plan - - - - - . .
Contribution to defined centribution plan - - - - 2,622 3,087 -
Rent & house maintanznce - - - - . 12,183 -
Utilties - . - . - 3,041 -
Medical - - - - 3,834 -
Ceonvayance - - - - 1 11,144 -
Others * - - - - - 810 -
Total 4,015 - 8,410 - 34,868 74 502 -
Nurmber of Parsens 9 5 Q 1 11 /]
2018
‘ltems Direclos Mambers Prasident/ CEQ Key Other Matarial
Chaitrnan Exacutives lother  Mon-Exscutives  Sharish Bosrd Managemant Risk Takers/
then CEQ} Patsonnai Contrcllers
Fees and Allowances etc. 5,955 - 11,662 - B - -
Msanagaerial Ramunaration
il Fixad - - . - 28,801 36,400 -
ii) Tatal Variable - - - - - - -
of which
a) Cash Bonus / Awards - - - - 1.000 5,480 -
b} Bonus & Awerds in Shares - - - - - - -
Chasge for definad bensfit plan - - - - - - -
Contribution 1o defined contribution plen - - - - 2822 2,845 -
Rent & house maintanance - - - - 1,029 11,387 -
Utifitias - - - - - 3,349 -
Wedical - - - - " 3,657 -
Conveyance - - - - - 30,033 -
Othars ** - - - - - 630 -
Total 5,955 - 11,662 - 34,462 73,675 -
Number of Persons 0 3 ] 1 10 [\
Any Cther Parks and Privileges: allowad to abave cfficisls should alsa be disclosed snd spacilied separataly.
* This includes outgeing chairenas during the yeat.
Tha term ‘Key Managemant Personnal’ means the fellowing functionsl 1esponsibilities:
L] Any axacutiva or kay executiva, scting as second to CEQ, by whataver neme called, and including the Chist Cpezating Officer {CO0; and Deputy Managing Directer.
ib) Any executive or key exacutive reporting diractly to the CEC/ Peesidant or the person nantionad in la) above.

Tha tarms Directors! Executive Dirsctors/ Non-Executive D
Cemmaccial Banking. For the purpose of these disclosuras Kay Executiva will also include

Remuneration paid to Directors for perticipation In Board and Committes Mestings

ractors, CEO end Key Executives have ssme meenirg 85 defined in Prudentisl Regulations {PRs} for Corporate and
Exacutives who have direct repanting line to the PresicenyCEQ or BoD orits Committees.

2010
Mesting Foes and Allowsnces Paid
For Board Committoss
8. Bosrd Human
No. Neme of Director For Board Board Audit Boark Risk Rasource Bosrd Gtrateglc Totsl Amount
Mestings Committes Mensgomant Compsansstion Invastmant Pald
Committes P Committen
Committes
[Rupaes in *000}
1 Hemenat Jafn 841 84 4 &4 - 1,133
2 Asmaer Mahmood Husssin 3,743 173 173 1185 - 4,204
3 Arif Ahmad Khan 1,076 - - 39 - 1,118
4 Zahoor Ahmed 3,793 79 - 123 50 4.045
5 Ghelamisza Azjmandi 1,378 149 - - 50 1,578
i) Hamid feze Raufi 350 - - - - 380
Tetsl Amount Paid 11.282 485 237 341 hiu 12,425
2018
Maening Fees and Allowances Psid
For Board Commiriaas
Sr. . . Bosrd Human .
Ne. Name of Rirector Far Egard Bosrd Audit Board Risk Resource Boasd 518180iC | rou arount
Maatings . Manzgement ! Invastmant -
Committas p Compansstion . Paid
Comminee iy Committen
Commitiee
{Rupeas in "G00}
1 Arif Ahmad Khan 2,860 - - 35 74 2,969
2 Hemmat Jafri 4,131 123 123 92 - 4,469
Kl Asmar Mehrnood Hussalin 4,751 148 145 06 - §.147
4 Zahoot Ahmed 4,751 74 - 133 74 5032
Totat Amount Paid 16,483 342 268 368 148 17,817
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38.1

39.2

39.3

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The table below analyses financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting period by the level in the fair value
hierarchy into which the fair value measured is categorised.

2019
On balance sheet financial instruments Fair value B
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
------------------------ {Rupees in "000) ~-—---me-mesesermmeen-

Financial assets measured at fair value

Investments
Federal Government securities 8,489,344 8,489,344
Units of mutual funds - -
Shares in listed companies 959,729 959,729
Non Government Debt Securities 4,929,282 4,929,282
2018
Fair value

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
- {Rupees in '000) ———naner—

Financia! assets measured at fair value

Investments
Federal Government securities 5,261,046 5,261,046
Units of mutual funds 199,683 189,683
Shares in listed companies 832,505 832,505
Non Government Debt Securities 3,974,427 3,974,427

Fair value of financial assets

The fair vaiue of financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair vatue are not significantly different from their carrying values
since assets and liabilities are eaither short term in nature or in case of loan are frequently repriced.

Fair value is an amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in
an arm's fength transaction, Consequently, differences may arise between the carrying vaiue and the fair values' estimates.

The Company measures fair vaiues using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in
making the measurements:

Leve! 1: Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2; Eair value measurements using inputs other than guoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
assets or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Leve! 3; Fair value measurements using input for the asset or liability that are rot based on cbservable market data {i.e.
unobservable inputs).

On balance sheet financial instruments

2019 2018
Book value Fair vaiue Book value Fair value
------------------------ (Rupees in '000) --—«--ssunvmmnmmacanann

Assets

Cash and balances with treasury banks 46,383 46,383 73,144 73,144
Balances with other banks 83,751 83,751 80,653 60,653
Lendings to financial institutions 150,000 150,000 108,000 105,000
investments 14,598,528 14,664,301 11,352,612 11,258,828

e g
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment Details with respect to Business Activities

2018
Corporate Trading & Capital Others Total
Finance & Sales (other Markets
Commercial than Capital
Banking Market)
{Rupees in '000)
Profit & Loss
Net mark-up/return/profit 796,777 177,254 - (30,964) 943,067
Inter segment revenue - net : 2 - - .
Non mark-up / return / interest income 9,481 {56,870) 10,449 728 (36,212)
Total Income 806,258 120,384 10,449 (30,236) 906,855
Segment direct expenses 21,904 16,178 9,630 287,523 335,235
Inter segment expense allocation o L 2 S %
Total expenses 21,904 16,178 9,630 287,523 335,235
Provisions/ (Reversals) 316,749 (74,436) 65,160) “ 177,153
Profit before tax 467,605 178,642 65,979 (317,759) 394,467
Balance Sheet
Cash & Bank balances - - - 130,134 130,134
Investments 3,612,607 10,121,644 930,050 - 14,664,301
Net inter segment lending - - - - -
Lendings to financial institutions - 150,000 - - 150,000
Advances - performing 4,711,294 - - 114,777 4,826,071
- nen-performing 563,638 - - - 563,638
Others 602,619 144,054 8,032 385,740 1,140,445
Total Assets 8,490,158 10,415,698 938,082 630,651 21,474,589
Borrowings 4,753,734 5,888,155 200,892 - 10,842,781
Subordinated debt - - - - -
Deposits & other accounts 658,215 74,436 42,672 - 775,323
Net inter segment borrowing - - - - -
Others 169,492 40,247 - 176,027 385,766
Total liabilities 5,581,441 6,002,838 243,564 176,027 12,003,870
Equity 3,908,717 4,412,860 694,518 454,624 9,470,718
Total Equity & liabilities 9,490,158 10,415,698 938,082 630,651 21,474,589
Contingencies & Commitments 100,000 5,323,734 - - 5,423,734
2018
Corporate Trading & Capital Others Total
Finance & Sales (other Markets
Commercial than Capital
Banking Market)
(Rupees in '000)
Profit & Loss
Net mark-up/return/profit 255,444 173,856 - 5,510 434,810
Inter segment revenue - net - - - - -
Non mark-up / return / interest income 156,692 - 84,580 964 101,236
Total Income 271,136 173,856 84,580 6,474 536,046
Segment direct expenses 36,150 15,770 14,228 201,277 267,425
Inter segment expense allocation - - = s =
Total expenses 36,150 15,770 14,228 201,277 267,425
Provisions 134,660 74,436 48,067 - 257,163
Profit before tax 100,326 83,650 22,285 (194,803) 11,458
Balance Sheet
Cash & Bank balances - - - 133,797 133,797
Investments 3,351,589 7,144,954 763,385 - 11,259,928
Net inter segment lending - - - - -
Lendings to financial institutions - 105,000 - - 105,000
Advances - performing 5,410,162 - - 73,448 5,483,610
- non-performing 740,316 - - - 740,316

Others 432,348 97,737 38,931 233,770 802,786
Total Assets 9,934,415 7,347,691 802,316 441,015 18,525,437
Borrowings 2,327,698 5,466,400 121,761 - 7,915,859
Subordinated debt - - - - =
Deposits & other accounts 956,993 192,607 72,124 - 1,221,724
Net inter segment borrowing - - - - -
Others 153,068 31,069 - 94,037 278,164
Total liabilities 3,437,759 5,690,066 193,885 94,037 9,415,747
Equity 6,496,656 1,657,625 608,431 346,978 9,109,690
Total Equity & liabilities 9,934,415 7,347,691 802,316 441,015 18,625,437
Contingencies & Commitments 80,000 3,994,244 - - 4,074,244
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company has related party transactions with its shareholders, employee benefit plans, its directors and Key Management Personnel.

The Company enters into transactions with related paties in the ordinary course of business and on substantially the same terms as for
comparable transactions with person of similar standing. Contributions to and accruals in respect of staff retirement benefits and other benefit
plans are made in accordance with the actuarial valuations / terms of the contribution plan. Remuneration to the executives / officers is
determined in accordance with the terms of their appointment.

Details of transacitons with related parties during the year, other than those which have been disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements

are as follows:

Advances

. Opening balance
Addition during the year
Repaid during the year
Closing balance
Other Assets

Receivable from staff retirement fund
Other receivable

Deposits and other accounts

Opening balance

Roliforward during the year

Roliforward / Withdrawn during the year
Transfer in/ (out) - net

Closing balance

Other Liabilities

Interest / mark-up payable

Payable to staff retirement fund
Other liabilities

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Income

Mark-up / return / interest earned
Expense

Mark-up / return / interest paid
Operating expenses

Fees for Board & Committee Meeting

Allowances for Board & Committee Meeting

Managerial Remuneration

Cash Bonus / Awards

Contribution to-defined contribution plan
Rent & house maintenance

Utilities

Medical

Conveyance

Others

g

2019 2018
Directors  Key manage- Other related Directors Key manage- Other related
ment parties ment parties
personnel personnel
(Rupees in '000)
58,688 - - 22,559 -

- 21,229 - - 41,0589 =

5 (4,182) Z c (4,930) =

- 75,735 - - 58,688

- - 10,038 - - 9,035

- - 10,039 - - 9,035

- 1,823 587,715 - 80 . 456,681

- 23,353 3,045,655 - 7,026 2,143,428

(22,006) (3,048,014) - (5,263) (2,012,394)

B s - (20)
- 3,170 585,356 - 1,823 587,715
- 13 2433 - 14 2,767
" - - - 2,156
- 7,090 5 (6,475)

2019 2018
Directors  Key manage- Other related Directors Key manage- Other related
ment parties ment parties
personnel personnel
{Rupees in '000)

- 3,187 - - 1,432 -

- 254 75,109 - 43 44,622
3713 - - 2,228 = <
8,712 - - 15,389 = 5

- 71,716 - - 66,201 -

z 1,186 - - 6,480 -

. 5,689 - - 5,467 -

= 12,163 - - 12,420 -

- 3,041 - - 3,349 -

- 3,834 - - 3,657

- 11,151 - - 10,033 -

- 670 - 630 -
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CAPITAL ADEQUACY, LEVERAGE RATIO & LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS
Capital adequacy

As per requirements of SBP, the Bank is required to comply with the capital adequacy framework which comprises the following
capital standards:

i) Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR):
The MCR standard sets the paid - up capital that the Company is required to hold at all times.

As of the statement of financial position date, the Company's paid - up capital stands at Rs. 6 billion as against the required
MCR of Rs. 6 billion.

ii)  Capital Adequacy Ratio:

The Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) assesses the capital requirement based on the risks faced by the banks/DFIs. The
banks/DFls are required to comply with the CAR as specified by SBP on standalone as well as consolidated basis.

During the year 2013, SBP issued revised instructions on the computation of CAR based on Basel Il Capital Reform as
issued by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision. These instructions became effective from 31 December 2013
with full implementation intended by 31 December 2019. These instructions also specify the transitional arrangements
from 2013 to 2019.

Accordingly, the Bank has assessed and reported its Capital Adequacy Ratio in the financial statements on the basis of
Basel Il requirements as prescribed by SBP.

Capital Management
The regulatory capital as managed by the Company is analyzed into following tiers

Common Equity Tier | Capital (CETI), which includes fully paid up capital, general reserves, statutory reserves as per
the financial statements and net un-appropriated profits. Goodwill and other intangibles are deducted from Tier | Capital.

Tier 2 Capital, which includes surplus on revaluation of AFS securities after all regulatory adjustments applicable on Tier 2
2019 2018

(Rupees in '000)
Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR):

Paid-up capital (net of losses) 6,000,000 6,000,000
Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR):
Eligible Common Equity Tier 1 (CET 1) Capital 6,424,849 5,816,658
Eligible Additional Tier 1 (ADT 1) Capital - -
Total Eligible Tier 1 Capital 6,424,849 5,816,658
Eligible Tier 2 Capital - -
Total Eligible Capital (Tier 1 + Tier 2) 6,424,849 5,816,658
Risk Weighted Assets (RWAs):
Credit Risk 8,255,320 8,450,190
Market Risk 1,411,956 1,416,408
Operational Risk 1,403,104 1,231,336
Total 11,070,380 11,097,934
2019 2018

Required Actual Required Actual
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Adequacy ratio 6.00% 58.04% 6.00% 52.41%
Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio 7.50% 58.04% 7.50% 52.41%
Total Capital Adequacy Ratio 12.50% 58.04% 11.90% 52.41%

Standardized Approach of Basel Il is used for calculating Capital Adequacy for Credit and Market Risk while Basic indicator
Approach is used for calculating Capital Adequacy for Operational Risk.
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2019 2018
(Rupees in '000)
Leverage Ratio (LR):

Eligiblle Tier-1 Capital 6,424,849 5,816,658
Total Exposures 21,589,787 17,766,344
Leverage Ratio 29.76% 32.74%

Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR):

Total High Quality Liquid Assets 2,119,092 1,711,471
Total Net Cash Outflow 1,445,881 869,649
Liquidity Coverage Ratio 1.47 1.97
Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR):

Total Available Stable Funding 14,550,356 12,175,418
Total Required Stable Funding 10,497,288 10,211,830
Net Stable Funding Ratio 139% 119%

The full disclsoures on the CAPITAL ADEQUACY, LEVERAGE RATIO & LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS as per SBP instructions
issued from time to time has be placed on the website. The link to the full disclosure is avialable at http://
www.pairinvestment.com.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The primary risks associated with the Company's exposure are:

Credit Risk: the risk of loss resulting from client or counterparty default.

Market Risk: the exposure to market variables such as interest rates and equity prices.

Operational Risk: the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from external
events, and therefore includes legal risk.

PICL manages risk through a sound framework based on risk principles which includes an optimal organizational structure, risk
assessment and monitoring processes. Credit & Risk Management function (CRMD) is mandated to implement this
framework as a function independent of business segments working under the guidance of Board's Risk Management

The Company's Credit & Risk Management Department has BASEL Compliant, Credit, Market, Liquidity and Operational Risk
functions. Furthermore, Environmental Risk Management mechanism, through Green Banking Framework, has been defined
and is currently in implementation phase.

The Company's portfolio and exposures are governed through relevant policies, procedures and various risk measurement
techniques by adopting Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) and Stress Testing with a purpose to achieve
efficiency, effectiveness and compliance. Internal Risk Rating mechanism and transaction level risk analytics are in place to
have ongoing risk sensitive assessment and reporting. The Company is more focused towards implementing system based
risk assessment in order to have more efficiency in overall risk management processes.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss to the Company as a result of failure by a client or counterparty to meet its contractual obligations.
It is inherent in loans, commitments to lend, traded products, repurchase agreements (reverse repos), placements and other
lending transactions. The role of Credit Risk Management particularly includes:

- Participation in portfolio planning and management.

- Establishment of credit policies and standards that conform to regulatory requirements and the Company’s overall objectives.
- Working with Business Units in keeping aggregate credit risk exposure within the Company's risk appetite.

- Organizing portfolio reviews focusing on quality assessment, risk profiles, industry concentrations.

- Setting systems to identify significant portfolio indicators, problem credits and level of provisioning required.

The Company has designed an Internal Risk Rating Models and methodology to gauge credit risk elements in the banking book
of the Company.

The credit products mainly comprise of Fund based & Non-Fund based, including short term and long term financing, project
finance, term lending, reverse repurchase, bridge finance, investment in TFCs , sukuk bonds and placements with financials
institutions, etc. Exposures are collateralized by cash equivalents, fixed assets, and current assets including property plant and
equipment, land and building, hypothecation, pledge on stocks and receivables as the case may be. The Company manages
limits and controls concentrations of credit risk as identified, in particular to individual counterparties and groups, and to
industries, where appropriate.
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Concentrations of credit risk exist if clients are engaged in similar activities, or are located in the same geographic region or
have comparable economic characteristics such that their ability to meet contractual obligations would be similarly affected by
changes in economic, political or other conditions. The Company sets limits on its credit exposure to counterparty, to groups,
and to industry, which are in line with SBP standards.

Stress testing on credit portfolio is being carried out on regular basis to assess the impact of defaults on Company's earning
and capital adequacy. Credit concentration, rating migration, default shocks and risk aggregation of large exposures are few of
the main shocks used to gauge the strength of Credit risk standing of the Company.

Credit Risk — General Disclosures Basel II/ lll specific

The Company is more focused on the intent of Basel |I/ Il rather than just treating it as a regulatory requirement. Therefore, in
addition to the adoption of Standardized approach and reporting to SBP, the Company has already adopted the practice of
ongoing assessment as required under the advanced approaches of Basel Il .The Company has adopted Pillar |l ICAAP
requirements duly approved by the Board of Directors.

Credit Risk: Disclosure for portfolio subject to the Standardized Approach
For the calculation of Risk Weighted Assets under Standardized Approach, external credit ratings have been used for all
exposures, where available, against banks lending, corporate lending and debt instruments. The external ratings are further

mapped with SBP ratings scale to arrive at risk weights of each transaction.

Types of exposures and ECAl's used

Exposures JCR-VIS PACRA
Banks v v
Corporate v v

Credit exposures subject to standardised approach

Exposures
Rating Amount Deduction Net amount
Category Outstanding
mamemenmennsnmennenes (RUp@ES iN '000) --o-mremmemmmesmeenan
Corporate 1 1,298,804 - 1,298,804
2 3,114,783 - 3,114,783
34 10,836 - 10,836
5,6 - - -
Unrated 1 1,610,789 - 1,610,789
Unrated 2 1,374,855 - 1,374,855
Banks 5,685,221 - 5,323,734 261,487
Sovereigns 8,753,374 - 8,753,374
Retail Portfolio 7,484 - 7,484
Residential Mortgage Finance 107,293 - 107,293
Past Due Loans 761,408 - 761,408
Listed Equity investmnents 540,397 - 540,397
Unlisted Equity investmnents 131,501 - 131,501
Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,762 - 4,762
Others 722,891 - 722,891
24,024,398 5,323,734 18,700,664

Credit Risk: Disclosure with respect to Credit Risk Mitigation for Standardized approach - Basel |l specific

The credit policy of the Company covers credit risk mitigation process and requirements for all secured transactions. Key
elements include:

- Collateral type;

- Collateral quality and ranking;

- Collateral valuation process, and
- Margin requirements

Equitable Mortgage, Token Registered Mortgage, Hypothecation Charge Over Fixed Assets , Current Assets, Pledge of
Shares, Lending against Government Securities (for repo style transaction), GOP Guarantee and Pledge of stocks are the main
type of collaterals taken against the exposure.
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Lendlngs to flnanclal institutions

Cradit risk by public / private sector

Public/ Government
Private

investment in debt securities

Cradit risk by industry sector

Chemical and Pharrmaceuticals

Financial Institution

Home Applances

Manutacture of bakery other food products
Menufacture of basic izon and steel

Manuiacture of chemicals and chemical products
Manufacture of medicinal and pharmaceutical products
Pewer

Real estate activities

Cradit risk by publlc / private sector

Public/ Government
Private

Advances

Cradlt risk by industry sector

Manufacture of electrical machinery and apparatus

Cargo handling

Casting of iron and steel

Education

Fingneial Institution

Hotels and Tourism

Manufacture of basic iron and stee!

Manufacture of cement

Manufacture of dairy products

Manufacture of medicinat and phasenaceutical products

Manufacture of other grain mills products

Manufacture of parts and accesscries for motor vehicles

Manufacture of refined petroleum and products

Manufacture of rubher tyres

Manufactiure of rubber tyres and tubes

Manufacture of structural metal products

Manufaciure of sugar

Menufacture of Textiles

Med:g

Poultry and other animal farming and related protiucts

Production, transmission and distribution of electricity

Real estate activities

Staff Loans

Textile others

Printing, publishing and allied industries

hMaintensnce and repair

Manufacture of parts and accessories for motor
vehicles and their engine

Manutacture of other fabricated metal products

Manufacture of edible oil and ghee

Manufaciure of bakery other food produets n.e.c.

Printing and Publishing of rewspapers, journals,
periodicals and related pr

Credit risk by publle / private sector

Public/ Gevernment
Private

v

Gross landings

Naon-performing lendings

Provision hetd

2019 2018 2018 2018 2019 2018
{Rupaes In "(00)
150,000 105,000 - - -
160,000 105,000 - B - -

Gross Investmants

Non-parforming Investments

Provision hald

2019 Z018 2018 2018 2018 2078
{Rupees in '000)
248,518 486,777 - - . -
3,621,181 3,524,317 11.245 11,2456 11,245 11,245
150,000 200,000
300,000 300,000
17,957 21,550 7,957 23,411 1,711 1,741
120,800 150,000
50,965 94,228
378,680 209,702 19,680 19,680 13,630
3,929,282 4,986,574 38,882 54,338 32,656 12,955

Gross Investments

Non-performing Investments

Provision held

2018 2018 2018 2ms 2019 2018
{Rupeass in '000}

4,929,282 4,986,574 48,882 54,336 32,636 12,955

4,928,282 4,986,574 48,882 54,336 32,636 12,956

Gross advancas

Non-performing advances

Provision held

2018 2018 2019 2018 2019 208
{Rupess in '000)
575,000 600,000 - - - "
220,737 240,706 12,305 - 2,937 -
194,288 194,288 194,288 194,288 - -
137,632 122,204 - - - -
52,91 173,850 - - - -
100,600 140,000 - - - -
476,671 476,611 476,611 476,611 298,028 114,606
225,000 375,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000
245,922 286,653 - - - -
248,163 150,000 - - - -
61,566 116,227 - - - -
273,336 800,000 - - - -
- 31,250 - - - -
206,250 200,000 - - - -
91,429 640,000 70,000 70,080 70,000 64,165
2,155,047 1,212,547 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000
- 35,000 - - - -
95,250 106,500 85,250 85,250 95,250 -
348,891 453,698 152,988 41,615 - -
284,860 284,880 218,000 218,000 218,000 218,000
114,777 73,628 - - - -
37.410 41,421 28,410 41,421 - “
52,978 123,167 - - - -
37,828 62,368 - - - -
47,373 6,694 - " - -
197,803 43,126 - - - -
138,889 200,000 - - - -
27,943 - - - - -
6,648,924 7,195,685 1,822,853 1,712,086 1,259,215 971,770
Gross advances Non-performing advances Provision held
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
{Rupeaes In '000)
6,648,924 7,195,696 1,822,853 1,712,086 1,259,215 871,770
6,648,924 7,155,656 1,822,853 1,712,086 1,259,215 971,770




Contingencles and Commitments

Gredit tlsk by Industry sector

Production & Transmissicn of Energy

Manufacture of medicinal and pharmaceutical protucts
Production, transmission and distritbution of electricity

Credlt risk by publis / private sector

Publie/ Government
Private

Concentration of Advances

The Company’s exposures on the basis of total funded and nondunded expsoures) aggregated 1o
Rs 3.07 billion {2018: 3.18 billion) are as foliowing:

M9 2018
{Rupess in 000}
160,000 80,000
100,800 80,000
100,000 80,000
100,000 80,000
2019 2018

{Rupees in '000)

Funded 3,069,197 3,187,358
Non Funded . .
Total Exgosure 3,068,187 3,187,358
The sanctioned limits against thase expsoures aggregated to PKR 4.22 billion (2018: 3.32 billion)
Total Funded Ciassified therein 2018 2018

Amount Provislon held Amcunt Provision held
DAEM - - - .
Substandard R . R .
Doubttul - - - -
Loss 826,611,381 B48,025,529 702,377,000 433,546,000
Total 826,611,381 648,025,529 702,377,000 433,546,000

43.1.10 Advances - Provincs/Reglon-wise Dishursement & Utilizatlon
2019
Disbursemants Utllization **
Province/Region . Punjab Sindh
Sindh 2,615,430 1,025,000 1,590,430
Total 2,615,430 1,025,000 1,580,430
2018
Utilization **

Province/Reglon Dishursements Puniab Sindh -
Sindh 3,135,959 1,645,802 1,480,057
Total 3,135,858 1,645,902 4,490,057
* “Dishursements ot Province/Region wise™ refers to the place from where the funds ere being issued by the Company to the borrowers.

»x »{Jtilization of Province/Aegion wise” refers to the place where the funds are being utilized by borrower.

Market Risk

Trading activities are executed in the Treasury & Investment Unit [T&iU}. Major equity holdings are held to earn capital gain and dividend 1o support the Comgeny's
business activities while some of the investment positions of equity holding are mede for revenue generation as part of strategic initiatives. The Company is active in
the Money Market, Fixed Income ard Equity market that carry interest rate and equity price sisk on both trading and banking book respectively. ianagement level

Market Risk Committee has been invoked to ensure specific & general risk assessment of all Market related products on timely basis,

Controls are alse appied to prevent eny undue risk coneentrations in tracing books, taking into account variations in price volatility and market depth and Yiquidity. They
include condrols on exposure 1o individual market risk variables, such as individual interest or equity price {'risk factors’), and on positions in the securities of individual

issuers.

Market risk messures and controls are applied et the portiolio level, and concentration limits and other controls are applied where necessary 10 individua! risk types, 1@
particular books snd to specific exposures. Fortfolio risk measures are common 1o ail market risks, but concentration limits and other controls are tailored to the nature

of the activities and the risks they create.

The Company has developed Market Risk Pelicy, which cavers the techniques 1o gauge, monitor apd report the impact of interest rate and price risk implications.

Datails of Market Risk Weighted Assets subject to Basel iil Capital Adequacy Calculation are given below:

Market Risk Weighted Assets

Interest Rate Risk Exposure
Equity Exposure

e~

Assets Capital
Charge
706,047 112,967






4325 Mismatch of interest Rate Senasitive Assats and Lisbitities
2013

Effective Total Exposad to Yiaeld/ tlsk Nen-taterast
Yiald/ Over 1 Ovar3 Overé Ovar 1 Ovar2 Over 3 Cwar 5 bearing
Interest Upto 1 to3 to 8 Months to 1 to2 103 to§ to 10 Abova financlat
. rato Muonth Manths Manths Yoar Yaars Yaars Yadrs Yanrs 10 Years instrumants
Cn-batance sheat financlat lastrumarms {Rupeas [n 000}
Aszots
Cash and botanges with treasury banks 0.15% 46,396 €08 - - - - - - - - 48,788
Balancas with other banks 9.25% 83.751 70,720 - - - - - . - . 12.851
Lending 1o tinancial institutions 15.15% 150,000 100,000 50.000 - - - - - - - -
Investments 14.09% 14,664,301 2,364,566 2.454 982 2,837,801 3.161.898 463,835 - 7,203,620 1.201.875 - 975,974
Advancos 10.83% 5,389,709 1,366,258 1313459 584,689 69,493 191,468 283,058 481,827 630,843 79,323 580,287
Other ssse1s 305417 - - - - - - B - . 305.417
20,639,574 3,702212 3,818,441 3,422,190 3,231,397 655,363 293,058 1,665,447 1,832,718 78,323 1920427
Hinbitiles
Bills payable -
Bormowings 11.87% 10,842,781 4,895,440 563,158 3.696,165 61,095 156,832 245418 423,387 701,286 - -
Deposiis and ather accounts 13.58% 775324 169,782 591,792 12,550 1000 - . - - . ]
LiabHitius against assots sublect to financa lease - . - . - - . - - - -
Subordinated dabt - - . - - - - - - - Co.
Clher lizhilities 314,82 - . - - - - - - . 14821
11,832.92 5,165,222 1,154,950 3,708,715 62,005 156,832 245,418 423 387 701,286 - 3150
On-balsice sheat gap 8,708,684 11,463,010} 2,663,491 {286,525} 3,162,302 498,531 47,638 1.262.060 1,131,432 78.323 1,605,408
Oft-hal shest 1 lul Instr
Documentary credils and short-term trade-rafated transactions
Cemmitments in respect of:
- dorward loreign exchanga contracis
- forward government securities fransactions
- derivativas
- forward {ending
Other commitmants {ta be spacitied)
Off-balanca shoat gap . - - - - - - - - - -
Total Yiaid/Intarest Risk Sansitivity Gap 1.708,648 [1,483,010) 2,663,491 (288,525} 3,169,302 438,531 47,638 1.262.060 1,131,432 78323 1,505,408
Cumulativa Yiald/t Risk Itivity Gap 8,708,648 {1.463,010) _1:200.481 213,958 4,003,258 4,581,789 4629427 5,891 487 7,022,919 7,101,242 8,705,648
2018
Eflectiver Total Exposed 1o Yieldf Interast risk -
Yields Dvar 1 Tver3 Over € Tver Ovar 2 Gwra ears Manntatast
interast Upta 3 1cd tob Manthsto 1 102 03 wh to 10 Above baaring finsncial
mla Month Meonths Manths Year Yoot Yaars Years fears 110 Years Instsumants
{Aupess In '0C0)
On-balance sheet financiz) instruments
Agsete
Cash and balances wilh reasury banks 0.05% 73,144 566 - - - - - . - - 72,578
Balancas with othar banks 333% £0,653 27421 B - - - - - - - 33,232
Lending 10 financial institutivns 12.50% 105,000 105,000 - - - - - - - -
Investments 10.20% 11,258,526 3215626 3,185,046 2,509,283 803,575 - . - 495350 - 1,051,865
Advancas 10.58% £,223,826 1,921,354 23139 334,048 253.082 130.582 121,442 310.252 135,585 43021 847.341
{rther assels 802.786 802,768
18,525,435 5,165,167 5,611,365 2,842,311 1,056,657 130,592 124,442 310,252 ©30.935 49,021 2,507,603
Lisbitities
Bills payabie - - - - . - - - - - -
Borrowings 967% 7.9165,858 4,160,977 §91.336 2,095,772 57.278 118,662 118,862 236770 136,402 - -
Daposils and other accaums 10.20% 3,221.722 572,930 5354 113,074 - . N - - L.
Liabliities against asse1s subject to finance lsasy - - - - . - - - - . -
Subordinated debl . - - - - . “ . . N -
Diher liabilitias 278,168 - - 3 - - - - - - 278,165
2.416.745 4,733,507 1.527.053 2,208.846 57,278 118,662 118.662 236,770 136,402 - 278,165
On-balana sheat gap 9,102.650 431.260 4084312 633,465 999,375 12.020 2,780 73,982 494,533 49,021 2.329.438
Oft-bal shant 11 1al 1 e
Commitments in respact of:
« {orward foreign exchange contracls - - - - - - . - - -
«forwaid g ar socurities ions - - - - - - - - - . .
- derivativas - - - - - . - . - - L.
« forveard landing . - - - - - - - - - <.
Other commitmants ito ba spadified) - - - - - - - - - L.
Off-balance sheat gap - - - - - - - - - B
Total Yiald/Intarest Risk Sansitiviy Gap 5.109.690 431,260 4,084,312 633,465 953,379 12,020 2,780 73,482 © 494533 43.021 2,523 438
Cumulative Yield/Intacast Risk Senshtivity Gap 9.109,680 431,250 4,515.572 5.149,037 6.148416 5,160,436 6,163.216 B 2368.698 6,731,231 6,780,252 9,109,630
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43.4.1

43.4.2

43.4.3

4344

Liguidity risk policy has been designed that entails careful monitoring and control of the daily liquidity position, and
regular liquidity stress tests under a variety of scenarios. Scenarios encompass both normal and stressed market
conditions, including general market crises and the possibility that access to markets could be impacted by a stress
event affecting some part of the Company’s business.

The Company has developed Liquidity Risk Policy, which covers the techniques to gauge, monitor and report the
impact of potential liquidity risk indicators and its implications. Moreover, PAIR Investment maintain strict
adherence to SBP prescribed Liquidity Measures ensuring smooth liquidity i.e.: CRR, SLR, LCR and NSFR.

Liquidity Coverage Ratio

SBP issued BPRD Circular No. 8 dated June 23, 2016 advising implementation of Basel Il| liquidity standards that

constitute two ratios, i.e., Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) and Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR), and five monitoring
tools.

LCR is the measure of conversion capability of the Company's High Quality Liquid Assets (HQLAs) into cash to
meet immediate liquidity requirements over a 30 days horizon.

The Company calculates Liguidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) on monthly basis as per the guidelines given in the above
mentioned circular. The objective of LCR is to ensure the short-term resilience of the liquidity risk profile which
requires the Company to maintain sufficient High Quality Liquid Assets (HQLAs) to meet stressed cash outflows
over a prospective 30 calendar - days period. As of 31 December 2019, the Company's LCR stood at 1.47.

Governance of Liquidity Risk Management

Liquidity risk is managed through the liquidity risk policy approved by the Board. The Company has “zero
tolerance” for liquidity risk and will continue to maintain a comfortable margin of excess liquidity in the form of
cash and readily marketable assets to meet its funding requirements at any time.

Management of liquidity risk is accomplished through a formal structure which includes:

- Board of Directors (BOD)

- Risk Management Committee

- Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO)
- Treasury Division ‘

- Risk Management Division & Middle Office

- Finance Division

- Information Technology Division

The Board of Directors approves the liquidity risk policy and ensures, through quarterly reviews by the Risk
Management Committee of the Board, that the Company's liquidity risk is being managed prudently. Risk
Management Committee of the Board provides overall guidance in managing the Company’s liquidity risk. Liquidity
position is monitored daily by the Treasury Division and the Middle Office and reviewed regularly by ALCO.

Funding Strategy

The Company's prime source of liquidity is it's own Capital and funding from other Financial Institutions. The
Company also have sizable Deposits Base in the form of Certificate of Investments. The Company is endeavouring
to diversify its funding sources and enhance its Long-Term funding options so as to minimiz the Liquidity Risk.

Liquidity Risk Mitigation Techniques

Various tools and techniques are used to measure and monitor the possible liquidity risk. These include monitoring
of different liquidity ratios like Liquid Assets to Total Assets, advances to deposits, liquid assets to Clean Borrowing
& COls, Net Advances to Total Asset Ratio etc, which are monitored on regular basis against limits. Further, the
DFI also prepares the maturity profile of assets and liabilities to monitor the liquidity gaps over different time bands.
The DFl also ensures that statutory cash and liquidity requirements are maintained at all times.

In addition, LCR, NSFR & Monitoring Tools of Basel IIl framework further strengthen liquidity risk management of
the Company.

\q



43,48 Liquidity Stress Testing

As per. SBP BSD Circular No. 1 of 2012, Liquidity stress testing is being conducted under stress scenario. Shock
include the withdrawals of Interbank and deposits. The Company's liquidity risk management addresses the goal of
protecting solvency and the ability to withstand stressful events in the market place. Stress testing for liquidity as
prescribed in the liquidity risk policy is carried out regularly to estimate the impact of decline in liquidity.

T 43.4.6 Contingency Funding Plan

Contingency Funding Plan {CFP) is & part of liquidity risk policy of the Company which identifies the trigger events
that could cause a liquidity coniingency and describes the actions to be taken to manage it. The contingency
funding plan highlights liquidity management actions that needs to be taken to deal with the contingency. CFP
highlights possible funding sources, in case of a liquidity contingency.

43.4.7 Main Components of LCR

Main components of LCR are High Quality Liquid Assets snd Net Cash Outflows. Qutflows are mainly deposit
outflows net of cash inflows which consist of inflows from financing and money market placements up to 1
month. The inputs for calculation of LCR are based on SBP BPRD circuler no. 08 dated 23 June 201 6.

43.4.8 Composition of HOLAs

High Quality Liquid Assets consist of Level 1 Assets which are included in the stock of liquid assets at 100%
weightage of their market value i.e., Cash & Treasury balances, Conventional Government Securities, GOP ljarah
Sukuks, Foreign Currency Sukuks & Bonds issued by sovereigns. While Level 2 Assets comprise all equity shares
{excluding shares of Financial Institutions) listed on PSX 100.

43.49 Concentration of Funding Sources

Almost half of the Company's Balance sheet is funded by its own equity, while Borrowing from Financial
(nstitutions remain key source of funding. inorder to diversify its funding sources, the Company has sizable
Deposits Base in the form of Certificate of Investment while Term Borrowing from Centra! Bank and other Fls are

also tapped.
g 43.4.10 Currency Mismatch in the LCR
£
- About 90% of the Company's assets and liabfiites are in local currency. Currency mismatch in other currencies is
- reguiarly monitored.
43.4.11 Centralisation of Liquidity Management
Overall liquidity management of the Company is centralised in Treasury & Investment Unit.While ALCO periodically
monitors the Liguidity Management of the Company.
43.4.12 Other Infiows & Cufflows
Benefit of pledged deposits {deposits under lien) are not accounted for in calculation of LCR.
i 43.4.13 Net Stable Funding Ratio {NSFR}
NSFR is the ratio of the amount of Availabie Stable Funding {ASF} - source of funds, capital and liabilities refative to
the amount of Required Stable Funding (RSF) - use of funds, assets and off - balance sheet exposures.
n, The objective of NSFR is to ensure the avaifability of stable funds that a company must hold to enable it to build
and maintain its assets, investments and off balance sheet portfolio on an ongaing basis for longer term, i.e., over
a one year horizon. NSFR reduces maturity mismatches between the asset and liability items on the balehce sheet
_ and thereby reduces funding and roli - over risk. The Company's NSFR stood at 138% as on 31 December 2018,
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43.4,14 Maturities of Assets and Liabilities - based on contractual maturity of the assets and liabilities of the Company

2019
Total Over9
Upto 1 Day Over 1107 Over7to14 Over1d4days Overito2 Over2to 3 Over3to 6 Over6to9 niths 161 Over1to2 Over2to 3 Over3to5
days days to 1 month months months months months Vol years years yoars Over 5 years
(Rupees in '000)
Assets
Cash and balances with treasury banks 46,383 46,383 - - - - - - - z z = = =
Balances with other banks 83,751 83,751 - - - - - - - - = 5 . 8
Lendings to financial institutions 150,000 - - - 100,000 50,000 - - 2 - - % 2 i
Investments 14,664,301 56,250 - 9,541 1,524,346 499,666 405,528 1,442,802 1,496,111 1,830,906 1,198,334 365,237 2,748,854 3,086,726
Advances 5,389,709 3,223 25,710 202,736 87,794 59,949 91,493 509,891 487,621 450,590 702,627 1,345,670 677,398 745,007
Fixed assets 229,709 - - - - - - - = s I . e 5
Intangible assets 314 - - - - - - - - - 5 2 i I
Deferred tax assets 375,527 - - - - - - - 2 " = P! < 3
Other assets 534,895 12,502 6,226 54,254 23,664 55,451 109,771 167,631 105,396 - - - - 3
71,474,589 202,109 31,936 266,531 1,735,804 665,066 606,792 2,120,324 2,089,128 2,281,496 1,900,961 1,710,907 3,426,252 3,831,733
Liabilities .
Bills payable - - - - - - - - P = 7 2 = =
Borrowings 10,842,781 - 2,589,940 1,189,027 1,216,473 560,562 2,596 496,165 11,402 499,693 1,056,832 1,145,418 1,373,387 701,286
Deposits and other accounts 775,323 - 5,154 3,000 161,668 68,395 523,417 12,610 1,020 59 - - i 3
Liabilities against assets - - - - - - - - - & £ ” 9 i
subject to finance lease - - - - - - - = = b = 3 - i
Subordinated debt » - - - - - - - - . & o 3 A =
Deaferred tax liabilities - - - - - - - - > L s & 5 5
Other liabilities 385,766 - - - 14.601 - 259,330 12,097 - 7,090 63,508 - - s
12,003,870 - 2,595,094 1,192,027 1,392,742 628,957 785,343 520,872 12,422 506,842 1,120,340 1,145.418 1,373,387 701,286
Net assets 9,470,719 202,109 2,563,158 !925!456! 343,062 355109 !17355511 1!599!452 ZLUTG!'JDG 1,774,654 780,621 565,489 Z!DSZ!BES 3,130,447
Share capital 6,000,000
Reserves 888,356
Surplus on revaluation of assets 56,305
Unappropriated profit 2,526,058
9,470,713
Total 2018
Assets
Cash and balances with treasury banks 73,144 73,144 - - - - - - - - 5 : = 3
Balances with other banks 60,653 60,653 - - - - - - - 3 = # 5 a
Lendings to financial institutions 105,000 = = - - - 105,000 - - - - - = 5
Investments 11,259,928 75,000 999,57 80 1,071,328 1,974,851 11,598 1,001,636 886,220 50,189 299,080 412.735 2,229,491 2,248,147
Advances 6,223,926 2,660 13,280 540,623 67,931 187,477 63,276 604,888 717,297 881,281 741,058 1,305.001 766,808 332,338
Fixed assets 193,031 = - a4 = = & - = Z = - - 193,031
Intangible assets 21 - - - - - - - - - - - - 211
Deferred tax assets 346,484 - - - - - - - - - - = = 346,484
Other assets 263.060 4,215 2,383 46,885 35,670 34,624 39,729 15,898 83,655 - - - - -
18,525,437 215,672 1,015,244 587,588 1,174,929 2,196,952 219,602 1,622,423 1,687,172 931,470 1,040,138 1,717.738 2,996,299 3,120,211
Liabilities
Bills Payable - - - - - - - - - - - - . 2
Borrowings 7.915,858 2,000 1,835,653 982,737 1,340,588 988,739 2,596 220,772 8,716 173,861 618,662 618,662 986,770 136,402
Deposits and other accounts 1,221,724 - 73,637 242,399 257,014 60,535 475,184 112,976 20 60 - - - -
Liabilities against assets - - - - - . - - - - - - - 5
subject to finance lease - - - - - - - - - - - - = L
Subordinated debt - = = = 5 - 5 5 - = - - - -
Deferred tax liabilities - - - - - - - - - - - - = -
Other liabilities 278,164 - = - 8,349 o 194,626 13.624 - 6,475 56,091 - - -
9,415,747 2,000 1,808,190 1,225,136 1,605,951 1,048,274 672,406 347,372 8,736 180,096 673,753 618.662 986,770 136,402
Net assets 9,109,690 213,672 893,946) £_6§? 548) (437,022) 1,147,678 _[m 1,275,051 1,678,436 751,374 M 1,09¢ 074 2,009,529 2,983,809
Share capital 6,000,000
Reserves 840,066
Surplus on revaluation of assets (71,701)
Unappropriated profit 2,341,325

9,108,690

N\
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44 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
Subsequent to the year end, the Board of Directors proposed a final cash dividend of PKR
(2018: Nil) per share.
45.  GENERAL
45.1 Captions, as prescribed by BPRD Circular No.2 of 2018 issued by SBP, in respect of which there are no
amounts, have not been reproduced in these financial statements, except for captions of the statement of
financial position and profit and loss account.
45.2 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees, unless otherwise stated.
453 The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited [PACRA) has maintained the long term entity rating to AA (Double A)
and the short term rating at A1+ (A one plus) of the Company.
45.4 Corresponding figures
Comparative information has been re-classified, re-arranged or additionally incorporated in these financial
statements wherever necessary to facilitate comparison and better presentation. There were no significant
reclassifications during the current year.
46. DATE OF AUTHORISATION
These financial statements were authorized for issue on 'EFtB un by the Board of
Directors of the Company.
(i
i
. v g
\CDL:S@O g — \/‘\/\ C g ;
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive and Chairman Director™ Dijfector

Managing Director
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